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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Shareholders and the Supervisory Board of Russian Agriculturat Bank:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Open Joint-Stock Company
Russian Agricuftural Bank and its subsidiaries (the "Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 December 2007 and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
staternents in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted out audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controf relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Cpition
in our opinion, the accompanying consclidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,

the financial position of the Group as of 31 December 2007, and its financiai performance and s cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Internationat Financial Reporting Standards.
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Moscow, Russian Federation

30 April 2008

The firm is an authorized lcensee of the tradename and logo of PricewalersouseCoopers.




Russian Agricultural Bank Group
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Note 31 December 31 December

in thousands of Russian Foubles 2007 2008
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 7 33 950 183 13615 695
Mandatory cash balances with the Central Bank of the

Russian Federation 2 441 967 1717 423
Trading securities a8 12 056 055 6733224
Repurchase receivable 3 98 328 152 573
Derivative financial instruments 32 276 306 170 404
Securities available for sale G 11566 720 -
Securities held to maturity 10 5495 475 -
Gue from other banks (A 1627675 2864 625
Loans and advances to customers 12 281 BB3 137 155 865 243
Deferred income tax asset 27 5815 184 758
Intangible assets 13 347 3583 170 087
Fremises and equipment 13 6 924 308 2418 370
Current income tax prepayment 27 51 518 303 082
Other assels 14 404 563 384 163
TOTAL ASSETS 356 460 201 184 580 527
LIABILITIES
Derivative financial instruments 32 3 555 958 641 254
Due to other banks 15 61302 828 35 357 188
Customer accounts 18 96 857 714 34 462 791
Fromissory notes issued 17 32 361 184 38 236 757
Other borrowed funds 18 95 288 645 37 700 589
Syndicated loans 19 15 572 209 2615630
Current income tax liabilily 27 - 3180
Deferred tax lability 27 6592 694 -
Other liabilities 20 580923 287 386
Subordinated debts 21 17 320 463 13 337 088
TOTAL LIABILITIES 322 636 590 162 850 871
EQUITY
Share capital 22 28 477 833 21620833
Revaluation reserve for premises and equipment 23 811151 -
Revaluation reserve for available for sale securities 23 (1 858) B
Retained earnings 4 435 587 308 368
Net assets attributable to the Bank’s equity holders 33 822 913 219291939
Minority interest 698 557
TOTAL EQUITY 338238611 21928756

TOTAL LIABILITES AND EQUITY / 3566 460 201 184 580 627

o

Ralf of the Management Board on 30 April 2008
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S.G. Baranov ?:J LE. Galgerin

Ceputy Chaitman of t!éf‘ Deputy Ghief Accountant
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The notes set out on pages 5 to 70 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




Russian Agricultural Bank Group
Consolidated Income Statement

In thousands of Russian Roubles Note 2007 2006
interest income 24 32 603 226 14 953 028
interest expense 24 {15 573 943 {8 705 353)
Net interest income 17 (28 283 8 247 875
Provision for lpan impairment 11,12 (3 112 896) (26313823
Net interest income after provision for loan impairment 13 916 287 5616 293
Losses net of gains/gains less losses from trading securities (189 242} 99 288
Gains less losses from frading in foreign currencies 63 268 6 768
Foreign exchange translation gains less losses £ 860275 1720323
Losses, net of gains from derivative financial instruments (4 156 84%) (1541277
Fee and commission income 25 1136187 6513 543
Fee and commission expense 25 (162 003) (43 054)
Pravision for other assets 14 (7 981 (2 828)
frcome from the Ministry of Agriculiure of the Russian Federation for
participation in the national project § 468 127 118
Other operating income 197 715 80 475
Administrative and other operating expenses 26 {10 593 349 {5 480 576)
Profit before tax 5842 780 1176 086
ncomae tax expense 27 (1 488 953) (322 909)
Profit for the year 4 3583 827 853177
Profit attributable fo:
Equity holders of the Bank 4 353671 863 045
Minority interest 1566 132
Profit for the year 4 353 827 853 177
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the equity holders
of the Bank, basic and diluted 35 208 63
The notes set out on pages 5 to 70 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 2




Russian Agricultural Bank Group
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Notes Attributable to the equity holders of the Bank Minority Total
Share Revalua- Revaluas- Accumu- TOTAL interest equity
capital tion tion lated
reserve reserve deficit/
for for Retained
premi- available  earnings
ses and for sale
in thousands of equip- securi-
Russian Roubles ment ties
Balance at
31 BDecember 2005 11 519 833 - - {488 568} 11031 285 437 11031702
Profit for the year - - - 853 045 853 045 132 853177
Share issue 22 10 101 800 . - - 10101 000 - 10101 6GC
Dividends declared - - - (56 1113 (56 111) (12} (56 123
Balance at
31 December 2006 21620833 - - 308 366 21929 1989 557 21929756
Revaluation of
premises and
equipment, net of
deferred tax 13,23 - 911 151 - - 311 181 - g11 151
Revaluation of
available for sale
securities, net of
deferred tax 9,23 - - {1 658) - {1 658) (1 658)
Net income recognised
directly in equity - 911 151 (1 B858) - 909 493 - 909 493
Profit for the year - - - 4353671 4383671 156 4 353827
Total recognised
income for 2007 - 911 151 {1658) 4353871 5263164 156 5263320
Share issue 22 6 857 G0O - . - 6 857 000 - B 857 000
Dividends declared 28 - - - {226 450) {226 450) (15) (226 485)
Balance at
31 December 2007 28 477 833 911 151 (1658) 4435587 33822913 698 33823611

“The notes set out on pages 5 to 70 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




Russian Agricultural Bank Group
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

In thousands of Russian Roubles Note 2007 2008
Cash flows from operating activities

Interest received 32 341424 14 710 148
interest paid {13 713 088} (5 693 979
income/expenses received/paid from trading in trading securities (51 779} 75473
income received from trading in foreign currencies 63271 & 783
Realised losses on derivative financial instruments (1344 542) (1 073 007
Fees and commissions received 1132712 6513 543
Fees and commissions paid {94 830) (43 054)
Income received from the Ministry of Agriculture of the Russian Federation 8 488 127 118
Other operating income received 95778 63012
Staff costs paid (6 669 845) {3311 452)
Administrative and other operating expenses paid (3327 393) {1 877 599
Income tax paid (656 180) (622 383

Cash flows from operating activities before changes in operating assets
and liabilities 7784196 2 974 593

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Net increase in mandatory cash balances with the Central Bank of the

Russian Federation {724 544; {1232 709)
Net increase in frading securities {5 454 581) (2 387 122)
Net decrease/{(increase) in due from other banks 1196 089 (1 400 994)
Net increase in loans and advances to customers {138 835 282) {114 132212
Net decrease/{increase) in other assets 8787 (263 231)
Net increase in due to other hanks 26 926 178 31 093 8399
Net increase in customer accounts 61 301 304 19 708 919
Net {decrease)/increase in promissory notes issued (6601 790) 23 740 943
Net (decrease)/increase in other liabilities {999) 49 055
Net cash used in operating activities {54 400 644} (41 848 859)

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of premises and equipment 13 (3 585 545} (1 232 648)
Proceeds from disposal of premises and equipment 3 961 3897
Bividend income received 800 1 409
Acquisition of intangible assets 13 (228 992) (133 328)
Acquisition of securities held to maturity (5 477 725) -

Acquisition of investment securities available for sale 5 (1158 725) -

Net cash used in investing activities (10 454 128) {1 360 570)

Cash flows from financing activities

Issue of ordinary shares 22 6 857 000 G 608 000
Receipt of other borrowed funds 18 60 371412 25001 174
Receipt of syndicated loans 19 13 430 872 2534873
Repayment of syndicated loans 19 - {2 100 200)
Receipt of subordinated debis 2% 5180 200 13 398 700
Repayment of subordinated debts 21 - (165 000)
Dividends paid 28 (226 465} (58 123)
Net cash from financing activities 85613 018 52221624
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents {383 761} {185 188)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 20 374 488 8 823 007
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 13 815 695 4 792 688
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 7 33 990 183 13 615 685

The notes set cut on pages 5 to 70 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 4



Russian Agricultural Bank Group
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2007

1 Introduction

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Internationat Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASR) for the year
ended 31 December 2007 for Open Joint-Stock Company Russian Agricultural Bank (the "Bank”) and its
subsidiary, Cicsed Joint-Stock Company Chelyabinsky Commercial Land Bank {together referred to as the
“Group”). The Group also consclidates a special purpose entity RSHB Capital S.A., a company incorporated in
Luxembourg in 2005 and governed through its foundation documents under the laws of the Netherlands.
RSHB Capital S.A. has been established as a special purpose vehicle for the sole purpose of issuing
Eurobonds and lending the issue proceeds to the Bank (refer to Notes 18 and 21). Refer to Note 37 for
information about the subsidiary and special purpose entity.

The Bank was incorporated and is domiciled in the Russian Federation. The Bank is an open joint-stock
company limited by shares and was set up in accordance with Russian regulations.

The Bank's only shareholder is the Government of the Russian Federation represented by the Federal
Agency for Managing State Property. The Bank's principal business activity is commercial and retail banking
operations in the Russian Federation with emphasis on lending to agricuttural enterprises. The main
objectives of the Bank are:

. To participate in realisation of the monetary policy of the Russian Federation in the area of
agricultural production;

" To develop within the agricultural industry a national system of lending to the domestic
agricultural producers; and

. To maintain an effective and uninterrugted performance of the settlement system in the area of
agricultural production across the Russian Federation.

The Bank has operated under a full banking license issued by the Central Bank of the Russian Federation
("CBRF") since 13 June 2000. The Bank participates in the state deposit insurance scheme, which was
introduced by the Federal Law #177-FZ “Deposits of individuals insurance in Russian Federation” dated
23 December 2003. The State Deposit Insurance Agency guarantees repayment of 100% of individual
deposits up to RR 100 thousand and repayment of 90% of individual deposits in excess of RR 100 thousand
up to a limit of RR 400 thousand per individual in case of the withdrawal of a ficense of a bank or a CBRF
imposed moratorium on payments.

The Bank has 76 (2006: 71) branches in the Russian Federation. The Bank's registered address is:
118034 Russia, Moscow, Gagarinsky lane, 3.

The number of the Group’s employees at 31 December 2007 was 19 025 (31 December 2006: 10 988).

Activities of the Group include deposit taking and commercial lending, foreign exchange dealing, cash
operations and securities trading. These activities are conducted principatly in Russia.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in the currency of the Russian Federation, thousands
of Russian Roubles ("RR thousands"),

2 Operating Environment of the Group

Russian Federation. The Russian Federation displays certain characteristics of an emerging market,
including relatively high inflation and strong economic growth. The banking sector in the Russian Federation
is sensitive to adverse fluctuations in confidence and economic conditions and may occasionally experience
reductions in liquidity. Management is unable to predict all developments which could have an impact on the
banking sector and consequently what effect, if any, they could have on the financial position of the Group.

The tax, currency and customs legistation within the Russian Federation is subject to varying interpretations
and frequent changes. Furthermore, the need for further developments in the bankrupfey laws, the absence of
formalised procedures for the registration and enforcement of collateral and other legal and fiscal
impediments contribute to the challenges faced by banks currently operating in the Russian Federation. The
future econemic direction of the Russian Federation is largely dependent upon the effectiveness of economic,
financial and monetary measures undertaken by the Government, together with tax, legal, regulatary, and
political developments,




Russian Agricultural Bank Group
Notes to the Consoclidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2007

2 Operating Environment of the Group (Continued)

Recent volatility in global financial markets. Since the second half of 2007 there has been a sharp rise in
foreclosures in the US subprime mortgage market. The effects have spread beyond the US housing market
as gichal investors have re-evaluated their exposure to risks, resulting in increased volatility and lower
figuidity in the fixed income, equity, and derivative markets. The volume of Eurcbond issues and simiiar
wholesale financing by Russian banks has significantly reduced since August 2007. Such circumstances may
affect the ability of the Group to obtain new borrowings and refinance s existing borrowings at terms and
conditions that applied to similar transactions i recent periods. Borrowers of the Group may also be affected
by the lower liquidity situation which could in turn impact their ability to repay their amounts owed.
Management is unabie to reliably estimate the effects on the Group's financial position of any further possible

deterioration in the liquidity of the financiat markets and their increased volatility.

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS"} as issued by the |ASB under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of premises and equipment, available-for-sale securities and
financial instruments calegorised as at fair value through profit or loss (trading securities, repurchase
receivable and derivative financial instruments). The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the pericds presented, unless otherwise stated (refer to Note 5).

Consolidated financial statements. Subsidiaries are thase companies and other entities (including special
purpose entities) in which the Group, directly or indirectly, has an interest of more than one half of the voting
rights or otherwise has power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits,
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group (acquisition date) and
are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets given up, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. The date of
exchange is the acquisition date where a business combination is achieved in a single transaction, and is the
date of each share purchase where a business combination is achieved in stages by successive share
purchases.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the acquirer's share of the fair value of the net assets of the
acquiree at each exchange transaction is recorded as goodwill, The excess of the acquirer's interest in the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilittes and contingent liabilities acquired over cost ("negative
goodwill"} is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and coniingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The
difference, if any, between the fair values of the net assets at the dates of exchange and at the date of
acquisition is recorded directly in equity.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the cost cannot be recovered. The Bank and all of its
subsidiaries use uniform accounting policies consistent with the Group’s policies.

Mirority interest is that part of the net resulls and of the net assels of a subsidiary attributable fo interests
which are not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Bank. Minority interest forms a separate component of the
Group's equity.

Key measurement terms. Depending on their classification financial instruments are carried at fair value or
amortised cost as described below.




Russian Agricultural Bank Group
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2007

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Fair value is the current bid price for financial assets and current
asking price for financial kabilittes which are quoted in an active market. For assets and liabilittes with
offsetting market risks, the Group may use mid-market prices as a basis for establishing fair values for the
offsetting risk positions and apply the bid or asking price to the net open position as appropriate. A financial
instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange or other institution and those prices represent actual and reqularly occurring market transactions
on an arm's length basis.

Valuation techniques such as discounted cash flows models or models based on recent arm’'s length
tfransactions or consideration of financial data of the investees are used to fair value certain financial
instruments for which external market pricing information is not available, Valuation techniques may require
assumptions not supported by observable market data. Disclosures are made in these consolidated financial
statements if changing any such assumptions 1o a reascnably possible alternative would result in significantly
different profit, income, total assets or {otal liabilities.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a
financial instrument. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the transaction had not
taken place. Transaction costs include fees and commissions paid o agents (including employees acting as
selling agents), advisors, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Transaction costs do not include debt premiums or discounts, financing costs or
internal administrative or holding costs.

Amortised cost is the amount at which the financial instrument was recognised at initial recognition less any
principal repayments, plus accrued inferest, and for financial assets less any write-down for incurred
impairment lossas. Accrued interest includes amortisation of transaction costs deferred at initial recognition
and of any premium or discount to maturity amount using the effective interest method. Accrued interest
ncome and accrued interest expense, including both accrued coupon and amortised discount or premium
(including fees deferred at origination, if any), are not presented separately and are included in the carrying
vaiues of related balance sheet items.

The effective interest rate method is a method of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of interest (effective interest rate) on the carrying
amount. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts (excluding future credit losses) through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
pericd, if appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial instrument. The effective interest rate
discounts cash flows of variable interest instruments to the next interest repricing date except for the premium
or discount which reflects the credit spread over the floating rate specified in the instrument, or other variables
that are not resat to market rates. Such premiums or discounts are amortised over the whole expected life of
the instrument. The present value calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (refer to income and expense recognition policy).

Initial recognition of financial instruments. Trading securities, derivative financial instruments and other
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are initially recorded at fair value. All other financial
instruments are initially recorded at fair value plus transaction costs. Fair value at initial recognition is best
evidenced by the transaction price. A gain or loss on initial recognition is only recorded if there is a difference
between fair value and transaction price which can be evidenced by other observable current market
transactions in the same instrument or by a valuation technique whose inputs include only data from
observable markats.

Al purchases and sales of financial assets that require delivery within the time frame established by
reguiation or market convention ("reguiar way” purchases and sales) are recorded at trade date, which is the
date that the Group commits to deliver a financial asset. All other purchases and sales are recognised on the
settlement date with the change in value between the commitment date and seitlement date not recognised
for assets carried at cost or amortised cost; recognised in profit or loss for trading securities, derivative
financial instruments and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; and recognised in equity for
assets classified as available for sale.




Russian Agricultural Bank Group
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2007

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are items which are readily convertible to known
amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their value. Cash and cash
equivalents include interbank loans. deposits and reverse repo agreements with other banks with original
maturity of less than one month. Amounts, which relate to funds that are of a restricted nature, are excluded
from cash and cash equivalents.

Mandatory cash balances with the CBRF, Mandatory cash balances with the CBRF represent non-interest
bearing mandatory reserve deposits which are not available to finance the Group's day to day operations and
hence are not considered as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the consolidated cash flow
statement.

Trading securities. Trading securities are securities, which are either acquired for generating a profit from
short-term fluctuations in price or trader's margin, or are securities inciuded in a portfolio in which a pattern of
short-term trading exisis. The Group classifies securities info trading securities if & has an intention to sell
them within a short period after purchase. Trading securities are not reclassified out of this category even
when the Group's intentions subsequently change.

Trading securities are carried at fair value. Interest earned on trading securities calculated using the effective
interest method is presented in the consolidated income statement as interest income. Dividends are
recorded as dividend income within other operating income when the Group’s right to receive the dividend
payment is established. All other elements of the changes in the fair value and gains or fosses on
derecognition are recorded in profit or loss as gains less losses from trading securities in the period in which
they arise,

Securities available for sale. This category includes securities which the Group intends to hold for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates,
exchange rales or equity prices. The Group classifies investments as available for sale at the time of
purchase.

Securities available for sale are carried at fair value. Interest income on available for sale debt securities is
calculated using the effective interest method and recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in profit or joss when the Group's right to receive payment is established
and it is probable that the dividends will be collected. All other elements of changes in the fair value are
deferred in equity until the investment is derecognised or impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is removed from equity to profit or ioss.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss when incurred as a result of one or mere events (“loss
events”) that occurred after the initial recognition of securities available for sale. A significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an equity security below its cost is an indicator that it is impaired. The cumulative
impairment loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses on eguity instruments are not reversed through profit or loss. If,
in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed through current period’s profit or loss.

Securities held to maturity. This category includes non-derivative financiai assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that the Group has both the intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Management determines the classification of securities held to maturity at their initial recognition and
reassesses the appropriateness of that classification at each bafance sheet date. Securities held to maturity
are carried at amortised cost.

Due from other banks. Amounts due from other banks are recorded when the Group advances money fo
counterparty banks with no intention of trading the resulting unquoted non-derivative receivable due on fixed
or determinable dates. Amounts due from cther banks are carried at amortised cost.




Russian Agricultural Bank Group
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2007

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Loans and advances fto customers. Loans and advances to customers are recorded when the Group
advances money fo purchase or originate an unguoted non-derivative receivable from a customer due on
fixed or determinable dates and has no intention of frading the receivable. L.oans and advances t¢ customers
are carried at amortised cost.

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or
foss when incurred as a result of one or more events {"ioss events”) that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset and which have an impact on the armount or timing of the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence exists that impairment was incurred for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it inciudes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. The primary factors that the Group considers when deciding
whether a financial asset is impaired is its overdue status and realisability of related collateral, if any. The
following other principal criteria are also used to determine that there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss has occurred:

= any instalment is overdue and the late payment cannot be attributed to a delay caused by the
setflement systems;

= the borrower experiences a significant financial difficulty as evidenced by borrower's financial
information that the Group obtains;

= the borrower considers bankruptcy or a financial reorganisation;

= there is adverse change in the payment status of the borrower as a result of changes in the national
or local economic conditions that impact the borrower,

= the value of collateral significantly decreases as a resulit of deteriorating market conditions.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar
credit risk characteristics. Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups
of such assets by being indicative of the debiors’ ability to pay alf amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on
the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets and on the basis of the historical information on
impairment of assets with similar credit risk characteristics. Past experience is adjusted on the basis of
current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect past periods and to
remove the effects of past conditions that do not exist currently.

When impaired financial assets are renegctiated, the new asset is recognised at the present value of cash
flows discounted using the original effective interest rate, which was applicable prior to the renegotiation.

impairment losses are recognised through an allowance account to write down the asset’'s carrying amount to
the present value of expected cash flows {which exclude future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the asset. The calculation of the present value of the
estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from
foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor's credit rating), the previcusly recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account through profit or loss.

Uncoliectible assets are written off against the related impairment loss provision after all the necessary
procedures o recover the asset have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Credit related commitments. The Group enters into credit related commitments, inciuding letters of credit
and financial guarantees. Financial guarantees represent irrevocable assurances to make payments in the
event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties and carry the same credit risk as loans.
Financial guarantees and commitments to provide a loan are initially recognised at their fair value, which is
normally evidenced by the amount of fees received. This amount is amortised on 2 straight line basis over the
life of the commitment, except for commitments to originate loans if it is probable that the Group will enter into
a specific lending arrangement and does not expect to sell the resulting loan shortly after origination; such
loan commitment fees are deferred and included in the carrying value of the ioan on initial recognition. At
each balance sheet date, the commitments are measured at the higher of (i) the unamortised balance of the
amount at initial recognition and (i) the best estimate of expenditure required to settle the commitment at the
balance sheet date.

Sale and repurchase agreements. Sale and repurchase agreements {“repo agreements’) are treated as
secured financing transactions, Securities sold under such sale and repurchase agreements are not
derecognised. The securities are not reclassified in the balance sheet unless the transferee has the right by
contract or custom to sell or repledge the securities, in which case they are reclassified as repurchase
receivable and measured at fair value. The corresponding Hability is presented within amounts due to other
banks or customer accounts and measured at armortized cost. The difference between the sale ang
repurchase price is treated as interest expense and accrued over the life of repc agreements using the
effective interest method.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (“reverse repo agreements”) are recorded as cash and cash
equivalents, due from other banks or loans and advances to customers. The difference between the
acquisition and resell price is treated as interest income and accrued over the fife of repo agreements using
the effective interest method.

Promissory notes purchased. Promissory notes purchased are included in trading securities, or in due from
other banks or in loans and advances to customers and also in securities held to maturity, depending on their
substance and are recorded, subsequently remeasured and accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policies for these categories of assets.

Investments in agricultural cooperatives. investments in agricultural cooperatives are made by the Bank
as part of its participation in the National Project "Development of the Agro-Industrial Sector”. These
investments represent term contributions to caoperatives and bear fixed annual dividend income on amount
of contributions made, which is included in interest income in the consolidated income statement. Investments
in agricultural cooperatives are included in loans and advances to customers. Investments in agricultural
cooperatives are carried at amortised cost,

Derecognition of financial assets. The Group derecognises financial assets when (a) the assets are
redeemed or the rights to cash flows from the assets otherwise expired or (b) the Group has fransferred the
rights to the cash flows from the financial assets or entered into a qualifying pass-through arrangement while
(i) also transferring substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets or (ji) neither transferring
nor retaining substantially all risks and rewards of ownership but not retaining control. Controf is retained if the
counterparty does not have the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party
without needing to impose additional restrictions on the sale.

Premises and equipment. Premises and equipment are stated at cost, restated to the equivalent purchasing
power of the Russian Rouble at 31 December 2002 for assets acquired prior to 1 January 2003, or revalued
amounts, as described below, less accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment, where required.

Premises owned by the Group were for the first time revalued as at 31 December 2007 and are subject to
regular subsequent revaluation. The frequency of revaluation depends upon the moverents in the fair values of
the premises being revalued. Revaluation recognized by method of proportion changes in cost and accumulated
depreciation of revalued premises. The revaluation reserve for premises and equipment included in equity is
transferred directly to retained earnings when the surpius is realised, i.e. either on the retirament or disposai of
the asset, or as the asset is used by the Group: in the latter case, the amount of the surplus realised is the
difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on
the asset's original cost.

10




Russian Agricultural Bank Group
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2007

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued}

Construction in progress is carried at historical cost, less provision for impairment where required.
Construction in progress is not depreciated until the asset is available for use.

if impaired, premises and equipment are written down o the higher of their value in use and fair value less
costs to sell. The decrease in carrying amount is charged to profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
an asset in prior years is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used (o determine the asset's
value in use or fair value less costs to sell.

Costs of minor repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred. Cost of replacing major parts or
components of premises and eguipment items are capitalised and the replaced part is retired. Gains and
losses on disposals determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount are recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation. Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other items of premises and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives at

the following annual rates:
Premises owned by the Group and leasehold (premises) improvements 2.5%:
Office and computer equipment 5%-20%,

The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that the Group would currently obtain from disposal of
the asset less the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and in the condition
expected at the end of its useful life. The residual value of an asset is nif if the Group expects to use the asset
until the end of its physical life. The assets' residual values and usefut lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Intangible assets. Al of the Group's intangible assets have definite useful life and primarily include
capitalised computer software.

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring o
use the specific software. Development costs that are directly associated with identifiable and unique software
controlled by the Group are recorded as intangible assets i the inflow of incremental economic benefits
exceeding costs is probable. Capitalised costs include staff costs of the software development team and an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads. All other cosis associated with computer software, e.g. its
maintenance, are expensed when incurred. Capitalised computer software is amortised on a straight line
basis over expected useful lives of five years.

Operating leases. Where the Group is a lessee in a lease which does not fransfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership from the lessor to the Group, the total lease payments are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis.

Due to other banks. Amounts due to other banks are recorded when money or other assets are advanced to
the Group by counterparty banks. The non-derivative liability is carried at amortised cost. If the Group
purchases its own debt, it is removed from the consolidated balance sheet and the difference between the
carrying amount of the liability and the consideration paid is included in gains or losses arising from retirement
of debt.

Customer accounts. Customer accounts are non-derivative liabilities to individuals, state or corporate
customers and are carried at amortised cost.

Promissory nofes issued. Promissory notes issued by the Group include promissory notes denominated in
Russian Roubles, US Dollars and Euro. They are carried at amortised cost. If the Group purchases its own
nromissory notes issued, they are removed from the consolidated balance sheet and the difference between
the carrying amount of the liahility and the consideration paid is included in gains arising from retirement of
debt.

Other borrowed funds. Other borrowed funds represent amounts attracted from Eurobends issue and bonds
denominated in Russian roubles. Issued Eurobonds and bonds denominated in Russian roubles carry a
coupon and are redeemable on a specific date. Other borrowed funds are carried at amortised cost.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Syndicated loans. Syndicated loans include the amounts attracted in US Dollars and Eure by organisation of
syndications, are redeemable on a specific date and carried at amortised cost.

Subordinated debts. Subordinated debts are carried at amortised cost. Creditors’ claims on subordinated
debts will be considered only after all slaims of other creditors of the Group are satisfied.

Derivative financial instruments. Derivative financial instruments, including foreign exchange contracts
(forwards and swaps) and futures on shares are carried at their fair value. Non-derivative transactions are
aggregated and treated as a derivative when the {ransaction result, in substance, is a derivative.

All derivative financial instruments are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair
vatue is negative. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are included in gains/losses
from derivative financial instruments. The Group does not apply hedge accounting.

income taxes. Income taxes have been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Russian legislation enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The income tax charge
comprises current tax and deferred tax and is recognised in the consclidated income statement except if it is
recognised directly in equity because it relates to transactions that are aiso recognised, in the same or a
different period, directly in equity.

Current tax is the amount expected {o be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities in respect of
taxable profits or losses for the current and prior periods. Taxable profits or losses are based on estimates if
financial statements are authorised prior fo filing relevant tax returns. Taxes, other than on income, are
recorded within administrative and other operating expenses.

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method for tax loss carry forwards and
temporary differences arising between the fax bases of assets and iabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes. In accordance with the initial recognition exemption, deferred taxes are not
recorded for temporary differences on initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a transaction other than a
business combination if the transaction, when initially recorded, affects neither accounting nor taxable profit.
Deferred tax balances are measured at tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
which are expected o apply to the period when the temporary differences will reverse or the tax loss carry
forwards will be utiised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are nefted only within the individual companies of
the Group. Deferred tax assets for deductible temperary differences and tax loss carry forwards are recorded
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductions can
be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on post acquisition retained earnings of subsidiaries, except where the Group
controls the subsidiary’s dividend policy and it is probable that the difference will not reverse through
dividends or otherwise in the foreseeable future.

The Group's uncertain tax positions are reassessed by Management at every balance sheet date. Liabilities
are recorded for income tax postiions that are determined by Management as more likely than not to result in
additional taxes being levied if the positions were to be challenged by the tax authorities. The assessment is
based on the interpretation of tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and any known Court or other rulings on such issues. Liabilities for penalties, interest and taxes other
than on income are recognised based on Management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the obligations at the balance sheet date.

Provisions for liabilities and charges. Provisions for lizbilities and charges are non-financial fiabilities of
uncertain timing or amount. They are accrued when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to seftle the obtigation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Trade and other payables. Trade payables are accrued when the counterparty has performed its obligations
under the contract and are carried at amortised cost.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Dividends. Dividends are recorded in equily in the period in which they are declared. Dividends declared
after the balance sheet date and before the consclidated financial statements are authorised for issue are
disclosed in the subsequent events note. The statutory accounting reports of the Bank are the basis for profit
distribution and cther appropriations. Russian legistation identifies the basis of distribution as the current year

net profd,

income and expense recognition. Interest income and expense are recorded in the consolidated income
statement for all debt instruments on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. This method defers,
as part of interest income or expense, all fees paid or received between the parties to the contract that are an
integrat part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Fees integral to the effective interest rate include crigination fees received or paid by the entity relating to the
creation or acquisition of a financial asset or issuance of a financial liability, for example fees for evaluating
creditworthiness, evaluating and recording guarantees or collateral, negotiating the terms of the instrument
and for processing transaction documents.

Commitment fees received by the Group to originate loans at market interest rates are integral to the effective
interest rate if it is probable that the Group will enter into a specific lending arrangement and does not expect
to sell the resulting lean shortly after origination. The Group does not designate loan commitments as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

All other fees, commissions and other income and expense items are generally recorded on an accrual basis
by reference to completion of the specific transaction assessed on the hasis of the actual service provided as
a proportion of the total services to be provided.

Commission on agency sefvices are recognised based on the applicable service contracts. Income received
from the Ministry of Agriculture and expenses incurred related to the Bank's participation in the national
project “Development of Agro-industrial Sector” are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
services.

Foreign currency transiation. The functional currency of the Group’s consolidated entities is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates. The consolidated companies’ functional
currency and the Group’s presentation currency is the national currency of the Russian Federation, Russian

Roubles {"RR").

Monetary assets and labilities are translated into each entity’s functional currency at the official exchange
rate of the CBRF at the respective balance sheet dates. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of the transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and fiabilities into each entity’s
functional currency at year-end official exchange rates of the CBRF are recognised in foreign exchange
translation gains less losses in the consolidated income statement. Translation at year-end rates does not
apply to non-monetary items, including equity investmenis, Effects of exchange rate changes on the fair value
of equity securities are recorded as part of the fair value gain or loss.

At 31 December 2007 the principal rate of exchange used for transiating foreign currency balances was
USD 1 = RR 24,5462 {2008: USD 1 = RR 28.3311), EUR 1= RR 35.9332 (2006: EUR 1 = RR 34.6868).

Fiduciary assets. Assets and #abilities held by the Group in its own name, but on the account of third parties,
are not reported on the consolidated balance sheet. The extent of such balances and transactions is indicated
in Note 31. For the purposes of disclosure, fiduciary activities do not encompass safe custody functions.
Commissions received from fiduciary activities are shown in fee and commission income.

Offsetting. Financial asseis and #abilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated balance
sheet only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention
to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liabitity simultaneously.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Accounting for the effects of hyperinflation. The Russian Federation has previously experienced relatively
high levels of inflation and was considered to be hyperinflationary as defined by IAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies ("IAS 29”"). IAS 29 requires that the consolidated financial statements prepared
in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy be stated in terms of the measuring unit current at the baiance
sheet date. | stales that reporting operating resuits and financial position in the local currency without
restatement is not useful because money loses purchasing power at such a rate that the comparison of
amounts from transactions and other events that have occurred at different times, even within the same
accounting period, is misleading.

The characteristics of the economic environment of the Russian Federation indicated that hyperinflation had
ceased effective from 1 January 2003. Restatement procedures of 1AS 29 are therefore only applied to assets
acquired and share capital issued prior {0 that date, For these balances, the amounts expressed in the
measuring unit current at as 31 December 2002 are the basis for the carrying amounts in these consolidated
financial statemenis. The restatement was calculated using the conversion factors derived from the Russian
Federation Consumer Price Index ("CP!"), published by the Russian Statistics Agency, and from indices
obtained from other sources for years prior to 1992,

Staff cosis and related contributions. Wages, salaries, contributions fo the Russian Federation state
pension and sccial insurance funds, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by the employees of the Group. The
Group makes payments to a non-state pension fund in respect of certain groups of employees (a defined
confribution plan).

These payments are included in the staff costs in the consolidated income statement.

Segment reporting. A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in
providing products or services (business segment) or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments. Segments with a majority of revenue earned from sales to external customers and
whose revenue, result or assets are ten percent or more of all the segments are reported separately.
Geographical segments of the Group have been reported separately within these consolidated financial
statements based on the ultimate domicile of the counterparty, e.g. based on economic risk rather than legal
risk of the counterparty.

Changes in accounting policies. The accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are consistent with the accounting policies applied in the preparation of consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008, except as detailed below and also
application of new standards described in Note 5, which became effective from 1 January 2007.

The Group changed its accounting policy for a class of fixed assets: premises owned by the Group. The
Group revalued the premises of the Group as at 31 December 2007. In the subsequent periods the above
class of fixed assets shall be subject to regular revaluation in accordance with IAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment. Refer to Note 13.

The Group changed its accounting policy for cash and cash equivalents and starting from 1 January 2007
also considers interbank loans, deposits and reverse repo agreements with other banks with original maturity
of less than one month as part of cash equivalents.

Where necessary, corresponding figures have been adjusted to conform to the changes in accounting
policies.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The effect of changes in the accounting policies on the consolidated batance sheet is as follows:

in thousands of Russian Roubles 31 December 2006
Increase in
Cash and cash squivalents 299 918

Decrease in
Due from other banks 299 618

The effect of changes in the accounting policies on the consalidated cash flow statement is as follows:

In thousands of Russian Roubles 2008
Increase in

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2986 916
Net decrease/(increase) in due from other banks 435 902
Decrease in

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 135 688

Changes in presentation. The Group made voluntary changes in presentation as it believes that it will result
in the consolidated financial statements providing refiable and more refevant information about the effects of
transactions, other events and conditions on the Group's financial position and financial performance.

The effect of the reclassifications on the consolidated baiance sheet is as follows:

In thousands of Russian Roubles 31 December 2006
Increase in

Derivative financial instruments (asset) 170 404
Derivative financial instruments (liability} 641 254
Syndicated loans 2615830
Decrease in

Other assets 170 404
Other Habilities 641 254
Due to other banks 2615630

The effect of reclassifications on the consolidated income statement is as follows:

in thousands of Russian Roubles 2006
Increase in

Foreign exchange translation gain less losses 43 415
Decrease in

Gain from early retirement of debt 43 415

15




Russian Agricultural Bank Group
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2007

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

The effect of reclassifications on the consolidated cash flow statement is as follows:

in thousands of Russian Roubles 2008
increase in

Receipt of syndicated loans 2534873
Decrease in

Net (decrease)/increase in due to other banks 434 873
Repayment of syndicated loans 2 100 G600

Any further changes to these consolidated financial statements require approval of the Bank's Management
Board who authorised these consolidated financial statements for issue.

4 Critical Accounting Estimates, and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements and the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaiuated and are based on Management's experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Management also makes certain judgements, apart from those involving estimations, in the process of
applying the accounting poficies. Judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements and estimates that can cause a significant adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and Habilities within the next financial year include:

Impairment losses on loans and advances. The Group regufarly reviews its loan portfolios to assess
impairment. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the consolidated income
statement, the Group makes judgements as to whether there is any objective data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease can be
identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in borrowers’ financial situation (assessed on the basis of internal rating
system) or an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group, or national or local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group.

Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and
objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash fiows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are
reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actuai loss experience. To the
extent that the assessed probability of default within pools of the total loans and advances to customers
differs by +/- one percent, the provision would be approximately RR 26687 thousand (2006:
RR 35 056 thousand) higher or RR 26 687 thousand (2006: RR 36 954 thousand) lower. To the extent that
the assessed loss identification period for 3% of loans collectively assessed for impairment differs by +/-
1 month, the provision would be approximately RR 25 031 thousand (2006: RR 71 837 thousand) higher or
RR 24 739 thousand (2006: RR 70 999 thousand) lower.

Held-to-maturity financial assets. Management applies judgement in assessing whether financial assets
can be categorised as held-to-maturity, in particular its intention and ability to hold the assets to maturity. if
the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for certain specific circumstances — for
example, selling an insignificant amount close to maturity — it will be required to reclassify the entire class as
avaiiable-for-sale. The investments would therefore be measured at fair value rather than amortised cost. if
the whole category of held-to maturity financial assets is reclassified, their carrying amount will not essentially
change. Refer to Note 33.

Leasehold (premises) improvements’ depreciation. The Group estimates useful lives of leasehold
{premises) equipment taking into consideration repeated extension of lease contracts, implementation of the
policy of gradual purchase of the earlier leased buildings into the Group’s ownership as well as "substance
over form” principle.

Tax legislation. Russian tax, currency and customs legislation is subject to varying interpretations. Refer to
Note 27.
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates, and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair value of derivative financial instruments. The fair values of financial derivative financial instruments
that are not quoted in active markets are determined by using valuation techniques (e.g., models). To the
extent practical, models use only observable data, however areas such as credit risk {both own and
counterparty), volatilities and correlations require Management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect reported fair values.

In the absence of direct and clear evidence on difference between contractual prices on derivative financial
instruments and cobservable market prices for similar instruments on the most favourable open market
accessible for the Group the fair value of derivative financial instruments at the date of initiai recognition is
considerad to be the amount of net investment {or nil in case of no inttial net investment). For currency swaps,
in which the Group agreed o pay roubles and receive US doliars, Euro or Swiss Francs (Note 32), this is
achieved by shifting rouble yield curve used to discount future cashflows in order to refiect the Group’s credit
risk.

This credit spread is subsequently adjusted only if there are observable market data about the Group's credit
spread for similar contracts. To the extent that the shift of rouble yield curve used to discount future cashflows
in order to reflect the Group’s credit risk is averaged for currency swaps with similar conditions {currencies,
original maturities, other terms), the fair value of currency swaps would be approximately RR 2 512 thousand
less (2006: RR 2 125 thousand higher}.

Related party transactions. The Bank's only shareholder is the Government of the Russian Federation
represented by the Federal Agency for Managing State Property (Refer to Note 1). Currently the Government
of the Russian Federation does not provide to the general public or entities under its ownership/control a
complete list of the entities which are owned or controlled directly or indirectly by the State. Judgement is
applied by the Management in identification of refated parties to be disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements. Refer to Note 36.

5 Adoption of New or Revised Standards and Interpretations

Certain new IFRSs became effective for the Group from 1 January 2007. Listed below are those new or
amended standards or interpretations which are or in the future could be relevant to the Group's operations
and the nature of their impact on the Group's accounting policies. All changes in accounting policies were
applied retrospectively with adjustments made to the retained earnings at 1 January 2008, unless otherwise
described below.

IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures and a complementary Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements - Capital Disclosures (effective from 1 January 2007). The IFRS introduced new
disclosures to improve the information about financial instruments, including about quantitative aspects of risk
exposures and the methods of risk management. The new guantitative disclosures provide information about
the extent of exposure to risk, based on information provided internally to the entity's key management
personnel. Qualitative and quantitative disclosures cover exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
including sensitivity analysis to market risk. IFRS 7 replaced 1AS 30, Disclosures in the Financial Staterments
of Banks and Similar Financial Institutions, and some of the requirements in IAS 32, Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentation. The Amendment to IAS 1 introduced disclosures about the level of an entity’s
capital and how it manages capital. The new disclosures are made in these financial statements.

Other new standards or interpretations. The Group has adopted the following other new standards or
interpretations which became effective from 1 January 2007
» IFRIC 7, Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29 (effective for periods beginning on or after
1 March 2008);
» IFRIC 8, Scope of IFRS 2 (effective for periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006);

» IFRIC 9, Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives (effective for annual pericds beginning on or after
1 June 2008},

« |FRIC 10, Interim Financial Reporting and impairment (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 November 2006).

The new IFRIC interpretations 7 to 10 did not significantly affect the Group's financial statements. As a result
of adoption of IFRS 7, the Group made certain changes in presentation. The effect of reclassifications was not
significant.
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8 New Accounting Pronouncements

Certain new standards and interpretations have been published that are mandatory for the Group's
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008 or later periods and which the Group has not early
adopted:

IFRS 8, Operating Segments (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009). The
standard applies to entities whose debt or equity instruments are traded in a public market or that file, or are
in the process of filing, their financial statements with a regulatory organisation for the purpose of issuing any
class of instruments in a public market. IFRS 8§ requires an entity to report financiai and descriptive
information about its operating segments and specifies how an entity should report such information.
Management is currently assessing what impact the standard will have on segment disclosures in the Group's
financial statements.

Puttable financial instruments and obligations arising on liquidation—-1AS 32 and IAS 1 Amendment
(effective from 1 January 2009). The amendment requires classification as equity of some financial
instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability. The Group does not expect the amendment to affect
its consolidated financial statements.

IAS 23, Borrowing Costs (revised March 2007; effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009). The revised IAS 23 was issued in March 2007 The main change to IAS 23 is the removal of
the option of immediately recognising as an expense borrowing costs that reiate to assets that take a
substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale. An entity is, therefore, required to capitalise such
borrowing costs as part of the cost of the asset. The revised standard applies prospectively to borrowing costs
relating to qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1 January 2009.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amended standard on its financial statements.

IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements (revised September 2007; effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2009). The main change in IAS 1 is the replacement of the income
statement by a statement of comprehensive income which will also include all non-owner changes in equity,
such as the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets. Alternatively, entities will be allowed to present
two statements: a separate income statement and a statement of comprehensive income. The revised 1AS 1
also introduces a requirement to present a statement of financial position {balance sheet) at the beginning of
the earliest comparative period whenever the entity restates comparatives due to reclassifications, changes in
accounting policies, or corrections of errors. The Group expects the revised 1AS 1 to affect the presentation of
its financial statements but to have no impact on the recognition or measurement of specific fransactions and

balances.

IAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (revised January 2008; effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009). The revised IAS 27 will require an entity to attribute total
comprehensive income fo the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests (previously “minority
interests”) even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance (the current standard
requires the excess losses to be allocated to the owners of the parent in most cases). The revised standard
specifies that changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in the loss of control
must be accounted for as equity transactions. It also specifies how an entity should measure any gain or loss
arising on the loss of control of a subsidiary. At the date when control is lost, any investment retained in the
former subsidiary will have to be measured at its fair value. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
amended standard on its consolidated financial statements.

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations—Amendment to IFRS 2, Share-based Payment (issued in
January 2008; effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008). The amendment
clarifies that only service conditions and performance conditions are vesting conditions. Other features of a
share-based payment are not vesting conditions. The amendment specifies that all cancellations, whether by
the entity or by other parties, should receive the same accounting treatment. The Group is currently assessing
the impact of the amended standard on its consolidated financial statements.
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6 New Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

IFRS 3, Business Combinations (revised January 2008; effective for business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or
after 1 July 2009).The revised IFRS 3 will allow entities to choose to measure non-controlfting interests using
the existing IFRS 3 method (proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets) or on the same
basis as US GAAP (at fair value). The revised IFRS 3 is more detailed in providing guidance on the
application of the purchase method to business combinations. The requirement to measure at fair value every
asset and Hability at each step in 2 step acquisition for the purposes of calculating a portion of goodwill has
been removed. Instead, goodwill wil be measured as the difference at acquisition date between the fair value
of any investment in the business neld before the acquisition, the consideration transferred and the net assels
acquired Acquisition-refated costs will be accounted for separately from the business combination and
therefore recognised as expenses rather than included in goodwill. An acquirer will have te recognise at the
acguisition date a liability for any contingent purchase consideration. Changes in the value of that Hability after
the acquisition date wili be recognised in accordance with other applicable IFRSs, as appropriate, rather than
by adjusting goodwill. The revised IFRS 3 brings info its scope business combinations involving only mutual
entities and business combinations achieved by contract alone. The Group is currently assessing the impact
of the amended standard on its consolidated financial statements.

Other new standards or interpretations. The Group has not early adopted the following other new
standards or interpretalions:

= IFRIC 11, IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions {(effective for annual periods beginning
on ot after 1 March 2007},

« JFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2008);

« IFRIC 13, Customer Loyaity Programmes (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2008},

= IFRIC 14, IAS 19—The Limit on a Defined Benefit Assef, Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008).

Unless otherwise described above, the new standards and interpretations are not expected to significantly
affect the Group's financial statements.

7 Cash and Cash Equivalents

In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2006
Cash on hand 2 991048 1 249 651
Cash balances with the CBRF (other than mandatory reserve deposits) 19 685 479 11 663 404
Correspondent accounts and deposits with matunty less than one months with other

banks:

- Russian Federation 8 008 658 441 644
- Other countries 2279030 £9 006
. Settlement accounts with MICEX and RTS 102 358 2 189
Reverse repo agreemenis 923 610 169 801
Total cash and cash equivalents 33 980 183 13615695

At 31 December 2007 cash equivalents of RR 823 610 thousand (2006: RR 198 801 thousand) are effectively
collateralised by securities purchased under reverse repc agreements at a fair value of
RR 1020 897 thousand {2006: RR 213 332 thousand), all of which the Group is entitled to sell or repledge.

Geographical and interest rate analyses of cash and cash equivalents are disclosed in Note 30. The
information on related party balances is disclosed in Note 36.
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8 Trading Securities and Repurchase Receivable
In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2006
Trading securities
Corporate bonds 3525374 1676 004
Federal loan bonds {OFZ) 3 080 454 1069928
Corporate Eurobonds 2875834 692 358
Promissory notes 1454 7568 2 447 BAR
Municipal bonds 1007 708 765 238
Corporate shares 111 877 88 158
Total trading securities 12 0586 055 6733224
Repurchase receivable
Municipat bonds 98 326 .
Caorporate bonds - 152 573
98 326 152 573

Total repurchase receivabile

As the securities are carried at their fair values based on quoted market prices, the Group does not analyse
or monitor impairment indicators on individual basis. Analysis by credit quality of debt securities outstanding

at 31 December 2007 is as follows:

Securities Securities internationally Total
internationaily internationally unrated
rated not lower rated lower than securities
in thousands of Russian Roubles than BB- (S&P) BB- (S&P)
Corporate bonds 2272711 - 1252663 35625374
Federal loan bonds (OFZ) 3 080 494 - 3080 494
Corporate Eurobonds 15633652 1342182 - 2875834
FPromissory notes 796 674 184 471 473 623 1454 768
Municipat bonds 1007 708 . - 1007 708
Total debt trading securities 8 691 239 1528 653 1726 286 11 944 178
Repurchase receivable
Municipal bonds 98 326 - - 98 326
If & security’s rating is unavailable the issuer's rating is used.
Analysis by credit quality of debt securities cutstanding at 31 December 2006 is as follows:
Securities Securities Internationally Total
internationally internationally unrated
rated not lower rated lower than securities
In thousands of Russian Roubles than BB- (8&F} BB- (S&P)
Corporate bonds 1 254 560 285728 129 716 1870 004
Federal loan bonds {OFZ) 1069 928 - - 1069 928
Corporate Eurobonds 401 429 278 159 12770 692 358
Promissory notes 1507 145 940 393 - 2 447 538
Municipal bonds 765 238 - - 765 238
Total debt trading securities 4 998 300 1 504 280 142 486 6 645 066
Repurchase receivable
- 10 686 141 887 152 573

Corporate bonds

If a security’s rating is unavaiiable the issuer's rating is used.
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8 Trading Securities and Repurchase Receivable (Continued)

Corporate bonds are securities denominated in Russian Roubles issued by major Russian companies.
Corporate bonds are traded at a discount or premium to face value and carry a coupon payable quarterly or
semi-annually, depending on the type of the bond issue and the issuer. These bonds have maturity dates
from April 2008 to March 2017 {2006 from January 2007 to February 2016), coupon rate from 8.7% to 13.5%
p.a. (2006: from 7.1% to 10.7% p.a.} and yield to maturity or to next repricing date from 6.8% to 16.0% p.a.
12006: from 6.6% to 11.1% p.a.), depending on the type of the bond issue, the issuer and the market
conditions.

OFZ bonds are Russian Rouble denominated government securities issued by the Ministry of Finance of the
Russian Federation. OFZ bonds have maturity dates from May 2010 to February 2036 {2006: from July 2010
to August 2018), coupon rate from 6.1% to 10.0% p.a. (2006 from 8.5% to 10.0% p.a.) and yield to maturity
from 6.1% to 6.8% p.a. {2006: from 6.1% to 6.5% p.a.} depending on the type of the bond issue and the
market conditions.

Corporate Eurobonds are interest bearing securities denominated in USD, issued by major Russian
companies. As at 31 December 2007 these bonds have maturity dates from March 2009 to June 2022 (2008:
from June 2007 to October 2016), coupon rate from 6.7% to 10.9% p.a. (2006: from 7.5% to 9.8% p.a.} and
yield to maturity from 6.6% to 12.2% p.a. {2006: from 5.4% to 9.6% p.a), depending on the type of the bond
issue, the issuer and the market conditions.

Promissory notes in the Group's portfolio are represented by promissory notes issued by Russian banks.
These promissory notes have maturities from January to June 2008 (2006 from January to December 2007).
As at 31 December 2007 yield to maturity ranges from 7.5% to 10.0% p.a. (2006: from 8.7% to 17.3% p.a.).

Municipal bonds are represented by bonds issued by Russian municipal authorities. These bonds are traded
at a discount or premium to face value and carry a coupon payable quarterty or semi-annually, depending on
the type of the bond issue and the issuer. As at 31 December 2007 these bonds have maturity dates from
May 2008 to June 2015 (20086: from November 2007 to June 2015), coupon rate from 6.8% to 10.0% p.a.
(2008: 6.8% fo 13.3% p.a.) and vield to maturity from 6.0% to 7.8% p.a. { 2006 from 6.0% to 8.0% p.a)
depending on the type of the bond issue, the issuer and the market conditions.

Corporate shares are shares of Russian companies.
The Bank is licensed by the Federal Commission on Securities Markets for trading in securities.

Geographicai, interest rate and analyses of trading securities and repurchase receivable are disclosed in
Note 30. The information on trading securities issued by related parties is disclosed in Note 36.

9 Securities Available for Sale

in thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2008
Municipal fzurcbonds 1001 500 -
Carporate Eurcbonds 155 220 -
Total securities available for sale 1156 720 -

As the securities available for sale are carried at their fair values based on quoted market prices, the Group
does not analyse or monitor individually impairment indicators. At 31 December 2007 securities available for
sale are internationally rated not lower than BB- by S&P.

Municipal Eurobonds are represented by denominated in Russian Roubles bonds issued by Russian
municipal authorities through the vehicle companies. As at 31 December 2007 these bonds have maturity
date in December 2012, semi-annual coupon rate 9.0% p.a. and yield to maturity from 9.0% p.a.

Corporate Eurobonds are bonds denominated in USD, issued by major Russian companies. At 31 December
2007 these bonds have maturity dates from April 2014 to August 2037, coupon rate from 7.3% to 9.3% p.a.
and yield to maturity from 7.3% to 8.0% p.a. (20086: nif), depending on the type of the bond issue, the issuer
and the market conditions.
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g Securities Available for Sale {Continued)

The movement in securities avaiiable for sale is in the table below:

In thousands of Russian Roubles Note 2007 2006
Balance at 1 January - .
Purchase 1186 725 -
(Gains less losses from fair vaiuation 23 (2 182) -
interest income 24 1835 -
Foreign exchange franslation gains less losses on securities 542 -
Balance at 31 December 1156 720 -

Geographicai and interest rate analyses of securities available for sale are disclosed in Note 30. The
information on securities available for sale issued by related parties is disclosed in Note 36.

10 Securities Held to Maturity

In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2006
Promissory notes 5 495 475 -
Total securities held to maturity 5495 475 -

Analysis by credit quality of debt securities held to maturity at 31 December 2007 (2006 nil) is as follows:

Securities Securities infernationally Total current
internationally internationally  unrated securities amounts
In thousands of Russian rated not lower rated lower than
Roubles than BB- {S&F) BB- (S&P)
Promissory notes 981 079 3334 127 1180 269 5495475

If a security’s rating is unavailable the issuer’s rating is used.

The primary factor that the Group considers when deciding whether a debt security is impaired is its overdue
status. Since the Group did not have impaired debt securities held to maturity, no provigions for impairment of
these securities was established.

Promissory notes in the Group's portfolio are represented by promissory notes issued by Russian banks.
These prommissory notes have maturities from January to December 2008. As at 31 December 2007 yield to
maturity ranges from 7.0% to 11.1% p.a. (2006: nil).

For the estimated fair value of securities held to maturity refer to Note 33.

Geographical and interest rate analyses of securities available for sale are disclosed in Note 30.
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14 Due from Other Banks

in thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2008
Cutrent term placements with other banks 1627 975 2 8584 625
Total due from other banks 1627 975 2864625
in 2007 no provision for impairment of due from other banks was created (2006: nil),
Analysis by credit quality of amounts due from other banks is as follows:
In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2006
Current and not impaired
Top 30 Russian banks (by net assets) 150 586 -
Other Russian banks 958 859 2 854 625
OECD banks and their subsidiary banks 173 413 -
Other non-resident banks 345 107 -
Totat current and not impaired 1627975 2 864 625
Analysis of amounts due from other banks by collaterat is as follows:
In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2006
Unsecured interbank icans 1151 398 2703630
Interbank loans coilateralised by:
- securities 173 413 160 995
- pther assets 303 164 -
Total due from other banks 1627 975 2 864 625

As at 31 December 2007 the Group has placements with three Russian banks with aggregated balances of
RR 901 845 thousand, or 55% of total due from other banks (2006: two banks with aggregated amount of
RR 1 853 779 thousand, or 5% of totai due from cther banks), which mature from February to June 2008.

For the estimated fair value of due from other banks refer to Note 33,

Geographical and interest rate analyses of due from other banks are disclosed in Note 30.The information cn

related party balances is disclosed in Note 36.
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12 Loans and Advances to Customers

In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2006
t.oans to legal entities

- Loans to corporales 247 233 851 132 944 166
. Lending for food interventions 3189828 4 490 331
- Reverse repo agreements 2 466 091 797 386
- Investments in agricultural cooperatives 663 912 386 935
Loans to individuals 45130 912 21 293 841
Total loans and advances to customers (before impairment) 298 684 694 159 922 759
{ ess: Provision for loan impairment {7 101 557} {4 057 518)
Total loans and advances to customers 291 583 137 155 865 243

Lending for food interventions is represented by loans to a company, which is 100% owned by the Federal
Government of the Russian Federation.

Investments in agricultural cooperatives represent contributions made by the Group as part of its participation
in the National Project "Development of the Agro-Industrial Sector". According to the contracts with
cooperatives the Group receives fixed annual dividends at the rate from 1/2 to 2/3 of the rate of refinancing of
the Bank of Russia of the contributions made. The Group's management has an intention to make
cooperative member contributions for the period of 5 to 8 years and at the end of which to withdraw its

contributions.

At 31 December 2007, loans and advances to customers of RR 2 466 091 thousand (2006
RR 797 386 thousand) are effectively collateralised by securities purchased under reverse repo agreements

with a fair value of RR 2 832 727 thousand (2006: RR 886 818 thousand) which the Group has the right to sell
or repledge securities in full,

Anaiysis of the movements in the provision or loan impairment is as follows:

2007 2006

Loans to Loans to Total l.oans to Loans to Total
In thousands of Russian Roubles _corporates__individuals corporates  individuals
Provision for loan impairment
at 1 January 3861793 195723 4 057 516 1 447 995 - 1 447 995
Provision for foan impairment
dusing the year 2732234 380 762 3112996 2 435 659 195 723 2631382
Loans and advances {0
cusiomers written off during the
year as uncoltectible {68 955) - (68 955) (21 861) - (21 881)
Provision for lean impairment
at 31 December 6 525072 576 485 7 101 557 3861793 195723 4057 516




Russian Agricultural Bank Group
Mo the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2007

12 Loans and Advances to Customers {Continued)

In 2007 no provision for “Lending for food interventions”, "Reverse repo agreements’, "investments in
agricultural cooperatives” was created {2006 nil).

The economic sector structure of the credit portfolio is as follows:

2007 2006
in thousands of Russian Roubles Amount Y Amount %
Agriculture 178 741 880 60 96 584 691 680
Individuals 45130 912 15 21283 941 13
Manufacturing 38079 200 13 20011 369 13
Trading 20 446 398 7 14 270 484 g
Construction 6177 875 2 3439537 2
Cther G 105 429 3 4322737 3
Total loans and advances to customers (before impairment) 298 684 694 100 159 922 759 100

As at 31 December 2007 included in gross amount of loans are loans in the amount of
RR 193 523 446 thousand (2006 RR 101 532 425 thousand), where borrowers are efigible for interest
subsidies from Federal and regional budgets. Subsidies are paid directly to the borrowers at two thirds of the
CBRF refinancing rate.

As at 31 December 2007, the aggregate amount of loans to individuals included loans in the amount of
RR 35 300 549 thousand issued to individuals - sole farmers (2006: RR 16 945 011 thousand).

For the estimated fair value of loans and advances to customers refer to the Note 33.

Loan portfolio analysis by credit quality. The Group estimates credit risk on the basis of professional
judgement pronounced upon completing a comprehensive review of the borrower's activities taking into
account its financial situation, debt service quality as well as all other information availabie to the Group
related to any other risks of the borrower.

In reviewing the borrower's financial position the Group applies a system of coefficients according to which
the borrower's financial situation is assessed as follows!
- good if the total score in evaluation of financial situation using the coefficient approach is 53 or more;

- average if the total score in evaluation of financial situation using the coefficient approach ranges from 52 to
25 {inclusive);

- poor if the total score in evaluation of financial situation using the coefficient approach is less than 25,

In accordance with the effective Methodology of financial assets impairment evaluation the Group includes

loans, for which there is no identified loss event or a borrower/debtor default into the category "coliectively
assessed for impairment”.,
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12 Loans and Advances to Customers (Continued)

As a loss event the Group recognises objective evidence of asset impairment that emerged subsequent to
initial recognifion, namely:

= for loans issued o legal entities (inciuding individuat entrepreneurs - sole farmers).

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower — changes in financial position from the moment when
the loan is issued from good or average to poor (score of 24 and below in accordance with the
Methodology of evaluation and analysis of the Group's borrower financial position taking into
consideration their industry, organisational and legal specifics),

- violation of contract — principle or interest overdue by more than 5 days;
« for loans issued to individuals:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower — changes in the scorring of the borrower's financial
position from the moment when the loan was issued from good to poor. te, loss or significant
decrease in income or cost of property, out of which the individual intended tc repay the debt (e.g.,
termination of labour relations between the employer and the individual if the latter has no
significant savings, existence of court decisions on bringing the inrdividual to criminal responsibility
in the form of imprisonment that came into effect, existence of documentarily supported information
of revocation of the license from the credit institution with which the individual's deposit is placed, if
failure to receive this deposit impacts the ability of the individual borrower to fuifil his/her obligations
on the loany;

- violation of contract — principle or interest overdue by more than 3G days.

As a default of a borrower/debtor the Group recognises cbjective evidence that it is impossible for the creditor
to claim future cash flows due under the contract, uniess the collateral is used (default of the
borrower/debtor}, namely:

»  for legal entities {including individual entrepreneurs - sole farmers):

- the debtors excluded from the Single State Register of Legal Entities without legal succession
(based upon the results of completed bankruptcy proceedings or on the basis of court decision on
liquidation of the borrower at the presentation of the authotised body);

- the debtors, with respect to whom bankruptcy proceedings are compieted but they are not excluded
from the Single State Register of Legal Entities;

- the debtors, with respect to whom bankruptcy proceedings are conducted however the court has
rejected the claim to include the amounts payabie to the Bank into the register of creditors andlor
there is no actual property used as a collateral that belongs to these debtors;

- the debtors, with respect to whom court decision has entered into force but the court has rejected
the claim to collect the debt in the Bank's favour or collection under a write-off execution is
impossible due to expiry of the term, during which it can be presented for execution;

- the debtors, who actually discontinued their operation and with respect to whom there exists a
documentary confirmation of their actuai absence;

- loans overdue by over 365 days;
= forindividuals:
- death of the debtor in the absence of heirs and inheritance,

- the debtors, with respect to whom court decision has entered into force but the court has rejected
the claim to coliect the debt in the Bank’s favour or collection under a writ of execution is impossible
due to expiry of the term, during which it can be presented for execution;

- the debtors, wha do not reside at the place of residence indicated in the loan agreement and with
respect to whom it is impossible to identify the new place of residence.

26



Russian Agricultural Bank Group
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2007

12  Loans and Advances to Customers (Continued)

Analysis by credit quality of loans outstanding at 31 December 2007 is as follows:

In thousands of Russian
FRoubles

l.oans to
corporates

Lending for

food

interventions

Reverse
repo
agreements

Investments
in
agricultural
cooperatives

{.oans to
individuals

Total

1, Current and not
impaired

- good financial position

- loans whose lerms were
renegotiated

3189 928

2 466 091

663 912

3130003

3189 928

Total current and not
impaired

3189 928

2 466 091

663 812

6 319 831

2. Collectively assessed
for impairment

Current

-~ good financial position

- average financial
position

- included in portfolios of
simular risk loans

- lpans whose terms
were renegofiated

Overdue

- gverdue by: less than
6 days for fegai
entities, less than
31 days for individuals

122 981 250
77 135 145
25783 619
15 454 805

493 930

43 407 967
1148 212

89 531

122 981 259
77 135145
69 191 586
16 603 017

593 461

Total collectively
assessed for
impairment

241 848 758

44 655 710

286 504 468

3. Individually assessed

for impairment

- poor financial position

- 6 to 30 days overdue

- 31 to 90 days overdue

- 91 to 180 days overdue

- 181 1o 365 days
averdue

- over 365 days cverdue

1458 730

176 845
10563 547
1135315

732 473
828 183

147 758
184 710

85 065
66 769

1458730

176 B45
1201305
1300025

828 438
894 952

Total individually
assessed for
impairment

5385093

475 202

5860 295

Total loans and
advances to
customers (before
impairment}

247 233 851

3 189928

2 466 091

663 912

45 130 912

298 684 694

Provision for loan
impairment

(6 525 072)

(576 485)

(7 101 557)

Total loans and
advances to
customers

240708 779

3189928

2 486 091

663 912

44 554 427

291 583 137

27



Russian Agricultural Bank Group
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2007

12

Loans and Advances to Customers (Continued)

Analysis of loans by credit quality at 31 December 2006 is as follows:

Loans to  Lending for Reverse Investments l.oans to Total
corporates food repo in  individuails

in thousands of Russian interventions agreements  agricultural

Roubles cooperatives
1. Current and not

impaired
- good financiat position - 4 480 331 797 386 396 835 . 5684 852
Total current and not

impaired - 4 490 331 797 386 396 935 - 5684 652
2. Coltectively assessed

for impairment

Current

- good financial position 63 374 919 - - - - 63 374 919
- average financial

position 47 608 594 - - - - 47 608 5394
- included in portfolios of

simular risk loans 14 682 761 - - - 19938 737 34621498
- loans whose terms were

renegotiated 4 297 573 - - - 1130012 5427 585
Overdue

- overdue by: less than

& days for legal entities,

less than 31 days for

individuals 198 660 - - - 155 771 354 431
Total collectively

assessed for

impairment 130 162 507 - - - 21224 520 151 387 027
3. Individually assessed

for impairment

- poor financial position 1177 838 - - - - 1177 836
- 6 to 30 days overdue 146 129 - - - . 1486 128
- 31 to 90 days overdue 224 312 - - - 51628 2754938
- 81 {0 180 days overdue 363725 - - - 8 501 372226
- 181 to 365 days

overdue 264 447 - - - 2702 267 149
- over 365 days overdue 805 210 - - - 6 502 611 802
Total individually

assessed for

impairment 2781659 . - - 69 421 2 851 080
Total {cans and

advances to customers

{before impairment) 132 944 166 4 490 331 797 386 396 935 21283941 159 922759
Provision for loan

impairment (3 861793) - - - (185723} (4 057 518)
TOTAL loans and

advances to customers 129 082 373 4 4380 331 797 386 396935 21098 218 155 865 243

28



Russian Agricultural Bank Group
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2007

12  Loans and Advances to Customers (Continued)

_In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2008
Current loans 273896 723 152 467 499
Loans whose terms wetre renegotiated 19792 945 5 427 585
Cwverdue loans 4 995 026 2027875
Provision for loan impairment {7 101 B57) (4 Gb7 516)
Total 291 583 137 155 865 243

Overdue loans represent not only past due payments but also outstanding balance of such loans.

Loans collateral

The Group uses various types of collateral, including mortgage, warranty, banking guarantee, government
guarantees of a Russian Federation and municipal guarantees.

The Group accepts different types of collateral, such as inventories (finished products, raw materials, goods in
turnover); equipment, including agricultural machinery; motor vehicles; real estate, land plots, construction in
progress, sea and cther vessels: farm animals; future crop; property acquired in the future; property rights.

Banking guarantee, warranly and other means provided for by the contract or the law may be used as
additional collateral.

Under the terms and conditions of certain lending programs {e.g., “Reliable Customer”) these additional
means securing fulfiment of obligations can be used as primary collateral.

Among other measures aimed at credit enhancement is the Group's requirement o insure the subject of
collateral. Property is insured by insurance companies that have accreditation and a cooperation agreement
with the Bank.

The Group monitors the condition and reviews the structure of the collateral. The primary purpose of the
review of the structure of collateral as weli as monitoring of the collateral rights perfection by the Group
include:

»  obtaining complete and objective information on the available collateral property and its structure;

= development of optimal schemes of realisation of collateral rights with account for the specifics of
regional distribution;

»  improving the effectiveness and timeliness of collateraf foreciosure process;,
= preparation of statistical and analytical information for the Group management,
= control over the Group’s regional branches with respect to issued loans.

The majority of collateral (over 70%) relates to the foilowing types: real estate — 32% {2006 26%), equipment
24% (2006: 24%) and motor vehicles — 16% (2006: 16%).

According to the Group’s internal policy documents i is allowed to issue unsecured ioans in the following
cases:

»  for legal entities ~ overdrafis and loans issued to refiable borrowers under Unsecured Credit program
for the period of up to 2 months and in the amount not in excess of RR 10 000 thousand;

» for individuals within the scope of Selskoe Podvorje {Rural Farm) program - ioans up to

RR 50 thousand (or equivaient in currency) under the programs ‘Consumer loans™; “Loans to the sole
farmers”, “Reliable Customer”.
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12 Loans and Advances to Customers {(Continued)

The Group has developed internal methodology, on the basis of which fair value of collateral should be
determined. The value of collaterat presented below was calculated based on this methodology:

In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2006

Collateral in respect of loans to corporate customers individually
assessed for impairment

- equipment 2189122 1 145 185
- real estate 2 102 964 1 545 048
- motor vehicies 963 083 403 689
- goods in turnover 818 388 405 124
- farm animals, poultry 454 832 296 263
- future crop 233272 68 175
- pther assels 99 310 5410

Total value of coliateral in respect of loans to corporate
customers individually assessed for impairment 6 860 972 J 868 872

{Loans to individuals individually assessed for impairment are secured with various types of collateral with
value determined based on the Group's internal methodology of RR 248 835 thousand (2006:
RR 82 153 thousand) as well as by guarantees of third parties with nominal value of RR 667 353 thousand
(2006: RR 157 297 thousand).

Actual realization cost of collateral in respect of loans {o corporate customers and individuals may significantiy
differ from the value disclosed above.

Geographical and interest rate analyses of loans and advances to customers are disclosed in Note 30. The
information on related party balances is disciosed in Note 36,
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13 Premises and Equipment
Note Premises Lease- Office and Land Total intan- Total
hold computer premises gible
{premi- equip- and equip- assets
ses) ment ment

In thousands of Russian improve-
Roubles ments
Cost at 1 January 2006 B21 480 179730 474034 - 1475244 155798 1631042
Accumuiated depreciation {3 180} (2 977) {148 554} - {181711) (88155} (240 868}
Carrying amount at

1 January 2006 818300 169753 325480 - 1313533 67643 1381176
Additions 228 430 394308 609 119 701 1232648 133328 1365976
Disposals . (1459) {4 141) - (5 600) . (5 600)
Depreciation charge 26 (15 880) {4 880) {100 341) - {(121211) (30874} (152 085)
Carrying amount at

31 December 2006 1030840 557712 830117 701 2418370 170097 2 589 467
Cost at 31 December 2006 1049910 572513 1088849 701 2691973 287177 2979150
Accumulated depreciation (19 070) (14 801) (238732} - (272603) (117 080} (389 683)
Carrying amount at

31 December 2006 1030840 557712 830147 701 2419370 170097 2 589 467
Additions 1832282 588327 965703 100233 3585545 238992 3824 537
Disposals - (4 109} (3514} - (7 623) - (7 623)
Depreciation charge 26 {36 504) (15500) (219773) - (271867) (B173B) {333603)
Changes in vaiue resuiting

from revaluation 1270012 - - - 1270012 - 1270012
Changes in depreciation

resulting from revaluation (71 129} - - - {71 129} - (71 129)
Carrying amount at

31 December 2007 4025411 1126430 1572533 199934 6924308 347 363 7 271 661
Cost at 31 December 2007 4152204 1156311 2016772 169 934 7525221 526 168 8051 390
Accumulated depreciation {126 793)  {29881) (444 239) - {B0D913) (178 818) (779 72Y)
Carrying amount at

31 December 2007 4025411 1126430 1572533 199934 6924308 347353 7271 661

Intangible assets mainly include capitalised computer software.

Carrying amount of premises without revaluation at 31 December 2007 is RR 2 826 528 thousand, including
cost in amount of RR 2 882 192 thousand and accumuiated depreciation RR 55 664 thousand.

Premises were independently valued as at 31 December 2007. The valuation was carried out by an
independent firm of valuers, Q0O Institute of Valuation of Property and Financial Activity, who hoid a relevant
professional qualification and who has recent experience in valuation of assets of simitar locatich and

category.
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14 QOther Assels

In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2006
Non-financial assets

Prepayment for construction in progress and services 276 796 267 352
Rent prepayment 42 707 24 867
Prepaid taxes 7 184 1063
Financial assets

Settlerments on funds transfer operations 47 580 79 034
Other 45 400 20 160
Erovision for impairment of other financial assets {16 094) (8113
Total other assets 404 563 384 183
Movements in the provision for impairment of other financial assets are as follows:

In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2008
Provision for impairment of other financial assets at 1 January 8113 5872
Provision for impairment of other financial assets during the year 7 981 2826
Other financial assets written off during the year as uncollectible - {5858)
Provision for impairment of other financial assets at 31 December 16 094 8 113

For the estimated fair value of other financial assets refer to the Note 33.

Geographical analysis of other assets is disciosed in Note 30. The information an related party balances is

disclosed in Note 36.

15 Due to Other Banks

In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2006

Term borrowings from other banks 61 150 114 35207 712
Correspondent accounts and overnight placements of other banks 68 687 17 453
Repo agreements 86 628 132 021
Total due to other banks 61 302 829 35 357 186

As at 31 December 2007 the Group had balances due to four foreign banks with aggregated amount of
RR 47 381 414 thousand, or 9% of total due to other banks (2008: due to three banks with aggregated
amount of RR 26 824 889 thousand, or 76% of total due to other banks).

For the estimated fair value of due to other banks refer to the Note 33.

Geographical, maturity and interest rate analyses of due to other banks are disclosed in Note 30. The
information on related pariy balances is disclosed in Note 36.
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16 Customer Accounts

It thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2006
State and public organisations

- Current/seftlement accounts 5044 482 1208 315
- Term deposils 612 574 156 825
Other legal entities

- Currentisettiement accounts 28 712 038 10 675 414
- Term deposits 34 339 386 11 914 834
- Sale and repurchase agreements with securities - 38 807
individuals

- Current/demand accounts 4 101 043 2069174
- Ferm deposits 22 248 191 8 389 522
Total customer accounts 95 957 714 34 462 791

State and public organisations exclude government owned profit criented businesses.

Economic sectar concentrations within customer accounts are as follows:

2007 2006
In thousands of Russian Roubles Amount % Amount %
Individuals 26 349 234 27 10468 696 30
Manufacturing 19 159 207 20 4612042 14
Construction 11825 755 12 1524 980 4
insurance 9 180 334 10 6028 Q30 18
Agriculture 8327735 9 4 317 408 13
State and public organisations 6 557 056 7 1 385 140 4
Financial services and pension security 4 715 363 5 396 208 1
Trading 4 303 028 5 1 544 364 4
Leasing 3295012 3 2866 332 g
Real estate 257 026 - 116 443 -
Other 1987 064 2 1093 058 3
Total customer accounts 95 957 714 100 34 462 791 160

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had one customer with balances above RR 3 400 000 thousand (2006:
three customers with batances above RR 2 200 000 thousand). The aggregate balance of this customer was
RR 13 552 721 thousand, or 18% of total customer accounts (2006: RR 8 259 047 thousand, or 24% of total

cusiomer gccounis).

For the estimated fair value of customer accounts refer to Note 33.

Geographical, interest rate and maturity analyses of customer accounts are disclosed in Note 30. The

information on related party balances is disclosed in Note 36.

17 Promissory Notes Issued

In thousands of Russian Roubles N 2007 2006
Promissory notes issued 32 361 154 38 235 757
Total promissory notes issued 32361 154 38 235 757
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17 Promissory Notes Issued {Continued)

The Group issued promissory notes at a discount to nominal value and interest bearing promissory notes
denominated in Russian Roubles, US doliars and Euros with effective interest rate from 0% p.a. (for
promissory notes on demand) up to 10% p.a. and maturity dates from January 2008 fo September 2014
(2006 promissory notes denominated Russian roubles and US Doflars with effective interest rate from 0%
p.a. {for promissory notes on demand) up to 9% p.a. and maturity dates from January 2007 to November

2011}

At 31 December 2007, promissory notes issued, which were initially purchased by four counterparties,
amounted RR 30 838 318 thousand or 96% of fotal promissory notes issued by the Group {2006: four
counterparties purchased promissory notes of RR 36 020 979 thousand or 94% of total promissory notes
issued).

For the estimated fair value of promissory notes issued refer to Note 33,

Geographical, maturity and intersst rate analyses of promisscry notes issued are disclosed in Note 30.

18 Other Borrowed Funds

in thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 20086

Eurobonds issued 64 994 398 27 682 740
Bonds issued on domestic market 30 204 247 10 017 849
Total other borrowed funds 95 288 645 37 700 589

At 31 December 2007, the Group's other borrowed funds included Eurobonds dencminated in US dollars and
Swiss francs that are issued by the Group through its special purpose entity, RHSB Capital S.A. as well as
bonds denominated in Russian Roubles and issued on domestic market.

Eurobonds with nominal value of USD 350 000 thousand (2006; USD 350 000 thousand) have maturity on
29 Novemper 2010 and semi-annual payment of coupon income. As at 31 December 2007, coupon rate was
8.875% p.a. (2006: 6.875% p.a.} and yield to maturity 6.2% p.a. (2006: 6.0% p.a.).

Eurchonds with rominal value of USD 700 000 thousand (2006: USD 700 000 thousand} have maturity on
16 May 2013 and semi-annual payment of coupon income. As at 31 December 2007, coupon income was
7.175% p.a. (2006: 7.175% p.a.) and yield to maturity 6.6% p.a. {(2006: 6.1% p.a.}).

In March 2007, the Group issued Eurobonds denominated in Swiss Francs in the total amount of
CHF 375 000 thousand. These borrowings mature on 29 March 2010 and have a coupon rate payable
annually. As at 31 December 2007, these bonds had coupon rate 3.583% p.a. and yield to maturity 4.1% p.a.

in May 2007, the Group issued Euwrobonds denominated in US Dollars in the total amount of
USD 1 250 000 thousand with maturity on 15 May 2017 and semi-annual payment of coupon income. As at
31 December 2007, these bonds had coupon rate 6.259% p.a. and yield to maturity 7.0% p.a.

in December 2004, the Group placed own bonds denominaied in Russian Roubles in the amount of
RR 3 0G0 000 thousand matwring in June 2008 with the quarterly payment of coupon income. As at
31 December 2007, coupon rate was 7.2% p.a. (2008: 7.2% p.a.) and yield to maturity 8.1% p.a. (2006: 7.0%

pa)

in February 2006, the Group placed cwn bonds denominated in Russian Roubles in the amount of
RR 7 000 000 thousand maturing in February 2011 with the quarterly payment of coupon income. As at
31 December 2007, coupon rate was 7.85% p.a. (2006: 7.85% p.a.} and yield to maturity 8.1% p.a. (2006:
7.3% p.a.)

In February 2007, the Group placed own bonds denominated in Russian Roubles in the amount of
RR 10 000 000 thousand maturing in February 2017 with an early redemption option in February 2010 and
the semi-annual payment of coupon income. As at 31 December 2007, coupon income was 7.34% p.a. and
yield to the next repricing date {in February 2010} of 8.0% p.a.
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18  Other Borrowed Funds (Continued)

In October 2007, the Group placed own bonds denominated in Russian Roubles in the amount of
RR 10 0G0 000 thousand maturing in September 2017 with an early redemption option in October 2008 and
the semi-annual payment of coupon income. As at 31 December 2007, coupon rate was 8.2% p.a. and yield
to the next repricing date (in October 2008} of 8.5% p.a.

For the estimated fair value of other borrowed funds refer to Note 33

Geographical, maturity and interest rate analyses of other borrowed funds are disclosed in Note 30.

19 Syndicated Loans

At 31 December 2007, syndicated loans attracted by the Group totalled RR 15 572 209 thousand (2006:
RR 2 615 630 thousand).

In Gctober 2006 the Group attracted a syndicated loan in Euro from ten OECD banks with the total amount of
Euro 75 000 thousand with maturity in October 2009 and current effective interest rate 6.2% p.a.

In April 2007 the Group attracted 2 tranches of syndicated loan in US Dollars with the total amount of
USD 520 000 thousand, with maturities in October 2008 and Aprit 2010, semi-annual coupon at the rate of
LIBOR + 0.3% p.a. (for tranche A) and LIBOR + 0.4% p a. (for tranche B).

For the estimated fair value of syndicated ioans refer to Note 33.

Geographical, maturity and interest rate analyses of other borrowed funds are disclosed in Note 30.

20 Other Liabilities

in thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 20086

Accrued staff costs 409 708 207 175
Taxes other than on income payable 66 559 57 511
Other 104 656 32 760
Total other non-financial liabilities 580 923 297 386

Geographical analysis of other liabilities is disctosed in Note 30.

21 Subordinated Debts

At 31 December 2007, the Group's subordinated debis totalled RR 17 320 463 thousand (2006
RR 13 337 088 thousand).

In September 2006, the Group attracted a subordinated debt totalling USD 500 000 thousand in Eurobonds
issued by the Group through #ts special purpose entity, RHSB Capital S.A. The Eurchonds mature in
September 2016, have current interest rate of 6.97% p.a, (2006 6.87% p.a.), and yield to the next repricing
date, i.e. in September 2011 at 7.4% p.a. (2006 6.2% p.a.). The Group has an option to terminate this
subordinated debt in September 2011,

In June 2007, the Group attracted a subordinated debt totaliing USD 200 000 thousand maturing in June
2017. The Group has an option to terminate in advance subordinated debt in next five years since attraction
date.

For the estimated fair value of subordinated debts refer o Note 33,

Geographical, maturity and interest rate analyses of subordinated debts are disclosed in Note 30, The
information on related party balances is disclosed in Note 36.
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22 Share Capital

The Group's share capital issued and fully paid comprises:

Number of Mominal Inflation adjusted

In thousands of Russian Roubles outstanding shares amount amount
At 1 January 2006 16 770 10 770 000 11 519 833
New ordinary shares issued 10 101 10 191 000 16 101 000
At 31 December 2006 20 871 20 871 000 21 620 833
Naw ordinary shares issued 6 857 6 857 000 6 857 000
27728 27 728 000 28 477 833

At 31 December 2007

The Group's issued and fully paid authorised share capitat comprises 27 728 issued and registered ordinary
shares. All ardinary shares have a nominal value of RR 1 000 thousand per share and rank equally. Each

share carries one voie.

In 2007, the Bank increased its share capital by issuing 8 857 ordinary shares with the total nominal amount
of RR 6 857 000 thousand. All shares were purchased by the Bank's only shareholder - the Government of

the Russian Federation represented by the Federal Agency for Managing State Property.

23 Other Reserves
Note Revaluation reserves Total other
in thousands of Russian Premises and equipment Securities available for reserves
Roubles sale
At 31 December 2006 - - -
Revaluation 9,13 1198883 {2 182) 1196 701
Income tax effects 27 {287 732) 524 (287 208)
At 31 December 2007 911 154 (1 658} 909 493
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24 Interest Income and Expense

In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2008
Interest income

L.oans and advances {o customers 31143 506 14 181 712
Trading securities 926 393 443 773
Cash eqguivalents 372 651 185 54
Due from other banks 141 291 151 589
Securities held to maturity 17 750 -
Securities available for sale 1635 -
Total interest income 32 603 226 14 953 028
Interest expense

Other borrowed funds (4 980 493} {2180 617}
Term deposits of other banks (3 193 049} (1232973
Promissory notes issued (3122 920} (1 780 380)
Term deposits of individuals (1335437} (581 312}
Term deposits of legal entities (1 136 670} (520 919)
Subordinated debts (1089 398} (257 423)
Syndicated loans {697 654} (131 359)
Current/settlement accounts (17 840} (10 368)
Other {482) (2)
Total interest expense {15 573 943) (6 705 353)
Net interest income 17 029 283 8 247 675

Interest income on loans and advances to customers includes interest income on loans individually assessed
for impairment in amount of RR 565 857 thousand (2006: RR 266 685 thousand).
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25 Eee and Commission Income and Expense

In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2008
Fee and commission income

Comrissicn on cash transactions 738 068 373 837
Commission on sattlement transactions 288 529 172 823
Agency fees for debt coltection and currency controt 98 757 64 013
Other G 832 2 870
Total fee and commission income 1138187 613 543

Fee and commission expense

Commission on cash collection (58 639) {26 795)
Commission on seftlement transactions (39 389) {15 651)
Other {2 975) (B08)
Total fee and commission expense {102 003} {43 054)
Net fee and commission income 1034 184 570 489
26 Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

in thousands of Russian Roubles Note 2007 2008
Staff cosis 6 861 850 3556 721
Rental expenses 796 816 375 266
Other costs of premises and equipment 566 386 309617
Taxes other than on income 388 532 215 983
Security 299 151 144 595
Depreciation of premises and equipment 13 271 867 121 211
Supplies and other materials 237 993 150 544
Communications 207 332 94 121
Advertising and marketing 157 849 70 647
Depreciation of intangible assets 13 61736 30874
Expenses refating to participation in the nationat project 7301 94 937
Other 636 536 316 060
Total administrative and other operating expenses 10 593 349 5 480 578

Expenses refating to participation in the national project represent expenses incurred by the Group relating to
information and marketing support of the national project “Development of Agro-industrial Sector” and mainly
include advertising and marketing. The Group received also income in the amount of RR 8 468 thousand
(2008: RR 127 118 thousand) from the Ministry of Agriculture of the Russian Federation under the state

contract concluded with the Ministry of Agriculture included in the consolidated income statement in
connection with the above project.

Included in staff costs are statutory social security and pension contributions of RR 1 C01 798 thousand
(2006: RR 523 394 thousand), and also contributions to a non-state pension fund in the amount of
RR 62 056 thousand (2006: RR 35 909 thousand).
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27 Income Taxes

Incomie tax expense comprises the following:

In thowsands of Russian Roubles 2007 2008
Currant tax Q04 524 400 589
Deferred tax 584 429 {77 680}
income tax expense for the year 1488 952 322 908

The income tax rate applicable to the majority of the Group's income is 24% (2006: 24%;). A reconciliation
between the expected and the actuat taxation charge is provided below.

In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2006
IFRS profit before tax 5842780 1176 086
Theoretical tax charge at statutory rate {2007:24%; 2006: 24%:} 1 402 267 282 261

Tax effect of items which are not deductible or assessable for
taxation purpeses:

- Non deductible staff costs 25 448 22211
- Non deductible charity costs 22522 g 005
- Other non deductible expenses 54 765 21 791
- Other non-temporary differences 1202 409

. income on govemment securities taxed at different rates {20 251) {12 788)
Income tax expense for the year 1 488 953 322 909

The Group has not recarded a deferred tax liability in respect of temporary differences of RR 20 379 thousand
(2006: RR 7 272 thousand) associated with investments in subsidiaries as the Group is able to conirol the
timing of the reversal of those temporary differences and does not intend to reverse them in the foreseeable

future.

Differences between IFRS and Russian statutory taxation regulations give rise to temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and for calculation of
profit tax The tax effect of the movements in these temporary differences is detailed below and is recorded at
the rate of 24% {2006: 24%), except for income on state securities that is taxed at 15% (2006: 15%).

In the context of the Group's current structure and Russian tax legislation, fax losses and current fax assets of
different group companies may not be offset against current tax liabitities and taxable profis of other group
companies and, accordingly, taxes may be accrued even where there is a consolidated tax loss. Therefore,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only when they relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.
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27 Income Taxes (Continued)

2006 {Charged)/ Charged 2007
credited to directly to

In thousands of Russian Roubles profit or loss equity o
Tax effect of deductible/(taxable) temporary

differences
Fair valuation of derivative financial instruments {83 843) (847 199) - (730 8423
Prermises and equipment {78 B47) (91 072} (287 732) (457 451}
Accruals on other berrowed funds, syndicated

loans and subordinated debfs (76 082) (89 207) - {165 289)
Intartgible assets (8 961) {25 116) E (34 077}
Accruals on due to other banks (29 420) (9086) - (30 326)
Promissory notes issued (9 470) 4303 - (5187)
Provision for loan impairment 343 879 3196 - 347 075
Accruals on loans 58 869 109 894 - 168 763
Accrued staff costs 48 543 45 426 - §3 965
Fair valuation of securities 5855 81722 524 88 101
Other 13 835 24 530 - 38 385
Net deferred income tax asset/(fiability) 184 758 {584 429) (287 208) (686 879)
Recognised deferred income tax asset 184 758 (178 943) - 5815
Recognised deferred income tax liability . {405 486) {287 208) (692 694)
Net deferred income tax asset/(liability) 184 758 (584 429) {287 208) (686 879)

2005 {Charged)icredited 2006

in thousands of Russian Roubles to profit or loss
Tax effect of deductible/(taxable) temporary

differences
Fair valuation of derivative financial instruments - {83 643) (83 643)
Premises and equipment (49 934) (28 713) {78 647)
Accruals on other borrowed funds, syndicated

loans and subordinated debts (22 027 (54 058) (76 082)
Intangiblie assets {23) {8 938) {8 861)
Accruals on due to other banks (2 907) (26 513) {29 420)
Promissory notes issued 74 210 (83 680} (9470}
Provision for loan impairment 97 996 245 883 343 879
Accruals on loans 17 838 41 031 58 869
Accrued staff costs 512 48 031 48 543
Fair valuation of securities (6 053) 11 908 5 8585
Other (2 534} 16 389 13835
Net deferred income tax asset 107 078 77 680 184 758
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28 Dividends

Note 2007 2006
in thousands of Russian Roubles Ordinary shares __ Ordinary shares
Dividends payable at 1 January - -
Dividends declared during the year 226 450 56 111
Dividends paid during the year (226 450) (58 111)
Dividends payabie at 31 December - “
Dividends per share declared

during the year 22 10,8 3.7

29 Segment Analysis

The Group's primary format for reporting segment information is business segments and the secondary
format is geographical segments.

Business Segments. The Group is organised on the basis of two main business segments:

. Commercial banking — representing direct debit facilities, current accounts, deposits, overdrafts, loan

and other credit facilities, operations on capital markets, foreign currency and derivative products,
transactions with securities.

. Retail banking — representing private banking services, private customer current accounts, savings,
deposits, investment savings products, custody, credit and debit cards, consumer ioans and
mortgages.

Segment information for the main reporable business segments of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2007 is set out below:

Commerciai  Retail banking Unaltocated Total

In thousands of Russian Roubles barking funds
Exiernal revenues 28 865 212 4 990 384 - 33 855 596
Total revenues 28 865 212 4 990 384 - 33 855 596
Total revenues comprise:
- Interest income 27 760 364 4 842 862 - 3z 603 226
- Fee and commission inceme 989 246 146 941 - 1136 187
. tncome from the Ministry of Agricuiture of the

Russtan Federation for participation in the

national project 8 488 - - 8 468
- Other operating income 107 134 581 - 1067 716
Total revenues 28 865 212 4 990 384 “ 33 855 596
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29  Segment Analysis (Continued)

Commercial Retail banking Unallocated Total

In thousands of Russian Roubles hanking funds

Total expenses comprise:

- interest expense {14 238 508) {1 335 437; - (15 573 943)
. Fee and commission expense {102 003} - - (102 603}
- Other administrative and operating expenses {G BGO 266) (733 083) - (10 593 349
- Provisions (2 740 215) {380 762) - (3120977
Total expenses {26 940 990) {2 449 282) - (29 380 272)
Intrasegment results 1059729 {1 059 729} - -
Total expense {25 881 261) {3 509 011) - (29 390 272)
Segment result 2 983 951 1 481 373 - 4 465 324
Unaliocated net gains 1 377 456
income lax expense {1 488 953)
Profit for the year 4 353 827
Segment assets 311 342 054 45 053 620 - 356 395674
Current and deferred tax assets - - 64 527 64 527
Total assets 311 342 054 45 053 620 64 527 356 460 201
Segment liabilities 295 528 103 26 349 234 321 877 337
Current and deferred tax habiiities - - 759 253 759 253
Total liabilities 295 528 103 26 349 234 759 253 322 636 590
Other segment items

Capital expenditure (3421813) (402 724) - (3 824 537
Depreciation (208 475) {35 128) - (333 603)

The Group changed the methodology of calc
retrospectively from 1 January 2006. Managemen
better reflects objectives of reporting segment informati
banking segment increased (revenues in retall banking

2006.

ulation of intrasegment results. The change was applied
t believes that the revised definition of intrasegment results
on. Due to this change revenues in the commercial
segment decreased) by RR 540 402 thousand in

The Group changed methodology for allocation of other administrative and operating expenses and
commission income between segments. Due to this change revenues in the sommercial banking segment

decreased (revenues in the retail banking segment increased) by
commercial banking segment increased (in the reta

in 2006.

iled banking segment decreased)

RR 61 787 thousand, expenses in the
by RR 98 877 thousand
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28 Segment Analysis (Continued)

Segment information for the main reportable

31 December 2006 is set out below:

business segments of the Group for the year ended

Commercial Retail banking Unallocated Total

In thousands of Russian Roubles banking funds
Extermnatl revenues 14 421 066 1333098 - 15 754 164
Total revenues 14 421 066 13330098 - 15754 164
Total revenues comprise:
- Interest income 13 693 738 1259290 - 14 953 (28
- Fee and commission income 540 010 73533 - G613 543
- Income from the Ministry of Agriculture of the

Russian Federation for participation in the

naticnal project 127 118 - - 127 118
- Other operating income 80 200 275 - 60 475
Total revenues 14 421 066 1333098 - 15 754 164
Total expenses comprise:
-Interest expense {6 124 041) (581 312} - {6 705 353)
- Fee and commission expense {43 054) - - {43 054)
- Other administrative and operating expenzes (5 152 646) {327 930) - (5 480 576
- Provisions (2 438 485} (195 723) - (2 634 208)
Total expenses (13 758 226) {1 104 965) - (14 863 191}
Intrasegment resulis 540 402¢ 540 402) - -
Total expense {13 217 824) {1 645 367) . {14 863 191)
Segment result 1203 242 (312 269) - 890 973
Unallocated net gains 285 113
Income tax expense (322 909)
Profit for the year 853177
Segment assets 162 587 474 21 504 280 . 184 §91 754
Current and deferred tax assets - - 488 873 488 873
Total assets 162 587 474 21 504 280 488 873 184 580 627
Segment liabilities 152 121 474 10 468 698 162 590 170
Current and deferred tax liabilities - - 60 701 60 701
Total liabilities 152 121 474 10 468 698 80 701 162 650 871
Other segment items

Capital expenditure {1240 033) (125 943} {1365 9786)
Depreciation (138 083) (14 022) - (152 085)

Geographical segments. The Group operates only in the Russian Federation. Substantially all revenues of
the Group were received from contracting parties cperating in the Russian Federation.
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30  Financial Risk Management

The purpose of the Group risk management policy is maintaining of acceptable levels of risks determined by
the Group with consideration of its strategic goals. The Group's priority task is to ensure the maximum safety
of assets and capital through minimising exposures that can lead to unforeseen losses.

The Bank's Supervisory Board approves the risk management policy and, consequently, is responsibie for
creating and monitoring the operation of the Bank's risk management system in general. Its competence also
covers decisions relating to significant risks,

The Bank's Management Board monitors the functioning of the risk management system, approves
documents and procedures for identification, evaluation, determination of acceptabie risk levei, selection of
response actions (acceptance, limitation, reallocation, hedging, avoidance) and monitoring thereof.

Operational risk management is carried out by the Bank’s Management Board, its Chairman, special working
commitiees and groups, also by separate structural divisions and executives on the basis of their
competence.

The responsibiity for risk monitoring and evaluation rests with the Department for Risks Evaiuation and
Monitoring (nereinafter, the DREM) which performs its functions independently from business units and
reports directly to the Chairman of Bank's Management Board Chairman. The DREM is responsible for
implementing the principles and methods of identification, evaluation and monitoring of financial risks.

The risks of ZAQ Chelyabcomzembank, a subsidiary, are managed in a similar way.

Credit risk. The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that the Group incurs losses as a
result of the default, overdue or partial default of the Group’s borrowers. Exposure to credit risk arises as a
result of the Group’s lending and other transactions with counterparties giving rise to financial assets.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk is reflected in the carrying amounts of financial assets on the
consolidated balance sheet. For guarantees, letters of credit and commitments to extend credit, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is the amount of the commitment. Refer to Note 31.

The Bank applies a centralised system for managing credit risk. The credit risk approval competencies are
determined as follows:

» The Supervisory Board approves decisions on loans in excess of RR 4 000 000 thousand (2006:
RR 1 000 000 thousand) per one borrower or a group of related borrowers.

» The Bank's Management Board has the authority of determine credit limits per one porrower or a
group of related borrowers with the aggregate credit risk limit per cne borrower or a greup of related
borrowers totalfing up to RR 4 000 000 thousand (2006: RR 1 000 006 thousand) inclusive.

= The Credit Committee makes credit authorization decisions within the limits provided by the
Management Board, including credit operations of up to RR 600000 thousand (2006:
RR 300 000 thousand) inclusive (limits on short-term and long-term {medium-term) loans are
considered independently).

« Credit commitiees of regional branches, Credit commissions of additional offices, certain executives
of the Bank make credit decisions within the preset limils.

»  The Resource Commiitee adopts decisions on limiting credit risks through setting structural and
portfolio mits and also Himits for counteragents and securities issuers. The Committee’s competence
also covers credit limits for the Bank's regional branches.

The Bank's authorised management bodies approve internal regulations that contain formalised descriptions
of risk eveluation procedures and processes for provision and servicing of credit products.
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The Bank selects credit projects with consideration of the purpose of lending, primary sources of repayment
of the loan, borrower's financial position, credit history, state of the economic sector and region, all
relationships between the Bank and related persons, availability of sufficient collateral, and loan pricing.

The Bank's authorised bodies set and promptly review no less than once a year credit limits for regional
branches and additional offices that are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Bank monitors portfolio concentration risk through setting credit limits by region, type of loan and certain
borrowers. Currently, the maximum level of portfolic concentration in one of the Bank's regional branch is
15% of the Bank's aggregate loan portfolio.

When seilecting lending and investment programmes, priority rests with the agricultural sector and related
industries, which support and service agricultural producers. The loan portfolio industry concentration risk is
mitigated by:
= lending to the entire cycle of agricultural product turnover {production, storage, processing and saies
to ultimate consumers);

= lending to borrowers with different specialisation in different regions;
=  acombination of several types of production in one entity typicai for agricuitural producers;
= diversification of investments in highly effective and reliable projects of other economic sectors;

»  limiting one borrower’s risk exposure.

The Bank uses different methods of securing execution by borrowers of their contractual gbligations in the
form of pledge of property or ownerhip rights (with approval of a list of pledged items subject to obligatory
insurance by insurers accredited by the Bank), guarantees and warranties from third parties.

Credit risk is monitored at different levels on the basis of the Bank's regulatory documents: at the level of
regional branch, additional office and the Head Office of the Bank.

Market risk. The Group takes on exposure to market risk arising from open positions in (a) currency, {b)
interest and (c) equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements.

In evaluating the Group's market risk, the subsidiary bank’s risk was assumed immaterial due o an
insignificant share of its assets and liabilities in the Group's balance sheet. Evatuation and monitoring of the
subsidiary bank's market risk are carried out on the basis of regulatory documents applicable to the Group.

Market risks are managed by means of identifying, evaluating, forecasting market prices, currency rates and
market interest rates, determining the acceptable level of risk on open positions, setting limits (creating a
system of limits enabling to minimise losses in case of unfavourable market changes), developing risk
insurance mechanisms.

The Bank's authorized bodies perform qualitative evaluation of market risk by means of expert analysis
method.

The responsibility of managing the Bank's market risk rests with the Management Board and the Resource
Committes within their competence.

The responsibility for operational managing of market risk, implementing market risk management policies
and complying with set fimits rests with the heads of structural units that carry out transactions exposed to
market risk.

The Bank’s exposure to market risks is analysed by the Treasury, the Capital Markets Department and DREM
within their competence.
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The Bank has contingency plans in case of unfavourable market fluctuations in the value of trading financial
instruments, derivative financial instruments, exchange rates and potential losses associated with changes in
interest rates. These actions constitute an integral part of the Bank's risk management system and serve a
preventive measure for ensuring the continuity of the Bank's operations and safety of the Bank's capital.

The responsibility for making decisions in case of dramatic market changes is laid on the Chairman of the
Bank's Management Board and the Resource Committee depending on specific procedures established for
particuiar types of imits.

Any additional expenses that need to be incurred for covering financial losses are approved by the Bank's
Management Board.

The responsibility for reviewing and preparation of reports for the Bank's management, assigning credit
ratings by international rating agencies and regulators rests with the Department for Evaluation and
Monitoring of Liguidity and Market Risks (hereinafter, “the DEMLMRT). The DEMLMR is a divison of DREM.

The DEMLMR’s functional duties cover determining the acceptable market risk level, independent of the
pusiness unit evaluation, review and control of the actual level of the Bank's market risk exposure, agreeing
and monitoring limits, monitoring transactions with financial instruments, evaluating the efficiency of these
transactions and comparing with the market risk level.

The Bank’s business units {the Capital Markets Department, the Treasury) and the Operational Department
are also in charge of current monitoring of positions exposed to market risks in the process of entering into,
and accounting for transactions.

The DEMLMR, jointly with business units, creates the regulatory basis for risks evaluation and interaction of
the Bank’s units in the process of identification and management of market risks, and also summarizes and
optimises the system of monitoring market risk.

Market risk is also mitigated by setting timits with consideration of the portfolio’s (instrument's) risk and the
Bank's business strategy. When setting limits, the Bank considers several factors, such as market
environment, financial position, business trends and management experience.

Limits are regularly reviewed by the Bank's authorised bodies, and the DEMLMR monitors limits and reports
information on compliance with the set limits to the Bank's management. The DEMLMR aiso considers and
agrees all limits proposed by business units for carrying out new transactions.

The Bank has a hierarchy of limits: structurai limits, positional limits, stop-loss limits, limits on transactions’
parameters, etc. The DEMLMR reviews the system of lirnits on an ongoing basis.

The Bank sets limits on:

»  the maximum volume of investments in certain types of assets or iiabilities,
«  the maximum level of losses and gains in case of changes in financial instruments’ prices (stop-i0ss);

« personal limit (imitation of authorities) on the Bank’s staff to adopt independent decisions concerning
certain types of transactions;

s the maximum allowed relation between certain ratios on assets and liabiiities, including off-balance
sheet claims and liabilities (open position fimit, limits on other comparative figures);

= various characteristics of financial instruments (discounts, etc.).

The Bank monitors currency position for each currency to comply with CBRF requirements.
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Interest rate risk. The Group takes on exposure fo the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on its financial position and cash flows. interest margins may increase or decrease in the event
if unexpected movements arise.

The sources of interest rate risk are:

= Mismatching of the level of interest rate changes for fioating rate instruments with the same regularity
of reprising {basis risk).

»  Mismatching of the maturities of assefs, fabilities and off-balance sheet claims and liabilities
associated with fixed or floating rate instruments (repricing risk).

» Changes in the yield curve on long and short positions relating to financial instruments, which create
the risk of loss as a result of excess of potential expenses over income at the close of these positions
(risk of yield curve changes).

The main method of interest rate risk measurement is evaluating the gaps between the Group’s assets and
sabilities that are sensitive to changes in the interest rate level (GAP method).

The tables below are based on management reports on the Bank's interest rate risk at the stated dates, that
were prepared in accordance with the Interest Rate Evaiuation Methodology approved by the Bank. Interest
rate reports are issued on a monthly basis using the information extracted from the accounting system, which
is based on the Russian Accounting Rules (“RAR”) with the assumption of stability of the structure of the
Bank's assets and habilities.

In evaluating the Group's interest risk, the subsidiary bank’s risk was assumed immateriai due to an
insignificant share of its assets and liabilities in the Group's balance sheet. Evaluation and monitoring of the
subsidiary bank’s interest risk are carried out on the basis of regulatory documents applicable to the Group.

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk at 31 December 2007 by showing the
Group's interest bearing financial asseis and liabilities in categories based on the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity gates.

Demand and Due Due BDue Due More than Total
in thousands of {ess than between between 31 between between 1 3 years
Russian 30 days 31 and and 181 days and 3 years
Roubles 80 days 180 days  and 1 year
Total interest
bearing
financial
assets” 37 494 369 36 076 181 46 830534 65403808 148634377 1158092 893 450 332 172
Total inierest
bearing
financiat
liabilities™ 20583774 63740523 47762291 53810837 116803036 101 824 830 404 625 300
Sensitivity
gap on
palance sheet
items 16 910 595 {27 664 332) {931 757y 1183297 31 731 341 14068054 45706872

* Total financial assets and total financial iabifities include positions in derivative financial instruments with
gross setilements valued at spot foreign exchange rates as they are accounted in accordance with RAR.
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The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate risks at 21 December 2008, Included in the
table are the Group's interest bearing assets and liabilities categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing
or maturity dates.

Demand and Bue Bue bue Due  More than Total
In thousands of less than between 31  between 91 between  between 1 3 years
Russian 30 days and 90 days and 181 days and 3 years
Roubles 180 days  and 1 year

Total interest
bearing assets® 16860575 18726090 30901842 44 076 998 52 B6B 665 B4 014 752 227 446 g22
Total interest

hearing
liabilities® 5265926 11192592 18640883 42724684 53964698 70305578 202 103 381

Sensitivity

gap on

bafance sheet

items 11 594 649 7533498 12251 859 1352314 (1098033) (6290 826} 25343 561

* Total financial assets and total financial fabilities include gross positions in derivative finangial instruments
with gross settlements valued at spot foreign exchange rates as they are accounted in accordance with RAR.

Securities included in the table above are presented by maturity (repricing) dates, except for the most highly
Hiquid securities categorised as “Demand and less than 30 days’,

At 31 December 2007, if interest rates at that date had been 100 basis points lower with all other variables
held constant, net interest income (with consideration of the time factor) for the year would have been
RR 33 507 thousand higher (2006: RR 283 655 thousand lower).

At 31 December 2007, if interest rates at that date had been 100 basis points higher with all other variables
held constant, net interest income (with consideration of the time factor) for the year would have been
RR 33 507 thousand lower (2008: RR 283 655 thousand higher).

The Bank’s Management Board monitors the fevel of interest rates on assets and tiabilities.
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The Group monitors interest rates for its financial instruments. The table below summarises interest rates
based on reports reviewed by key management personnet. The analysis has been prepared based on year-
end interest rates.

2007 2008
in % p.a. RR US Doliars  Euros  Other RR US Dollars Euros  Other

Assetls
Cash and cash equivalents
- cash balances with the Central
Bank of the Russian Federation
and settiement accounts with
MICEX and RTS G - - - 0 - - -
- correspondent accounts and
daposits with other banks with a
maturity of less than one month 4 5 0 0 3 5 0 G
Mandatory cash bafances with the
Central Bank of the Russian

Federation 0 - - - 0 - - .
Trading securities 8 8 - - 9 8 - -
Securities available for sale g 7 - - - - - -
Securities held to maturity g - - - - - - -
Bue from other banks g 11 4 - 7 10 4 -
t pans and advances to customers 14 g G 3] 14 10 10 -
Liabilities

Due to other banks 8 7 5 - 8 7 5 -
Customer accounts” 2] 8 6 - 9 4 3] -
Promissory notes issued 9 8 4 - 8 8 4 .
Other borrowed funds 8 7 - 4 8 7 - -
Syndicated loans - 8 6 - - - 5 -
Subordinated debts - 7 - . - 7 - -

* . disclosed rates on term deposits

The sign - in the table above means that the Group does not have the respective assels or liabitities in
corresponding currency.

Currency and Equity Risk Management

Currency and equity risks are assessed on the basis of the VAR method (Value At Risk). This method
represents a statistical evaluation of the ratio characterising the maximum amount of possible losses on @
portfolio consisting of different financial instruments (or one instrument) with a specified probabiity and for a
certain period of time. Reports on the level of market risk are issued on the basis of the approved
Methodology for Currency and Equity Risk Evaluation and provided by the DEMLMR to the Bank's
management and heads of interested units in compliance with the acting internal regulatory documents.

The Bank calculates VaR on the basis of a 95% confidence fevel and makes evaluations on the basis of
retrospective information on closing prices (as the most dynamic and precise in terms of risk evaluation) for
250 days, evaluation period is one day. Therefore, VaR shows the maximum loss that can be received from
the open position during one trading day with a 95% probability; however, in 5% of cases losses may exceed
this level.

VaR calculation is based on the data extracted from RAR accounting system and is shown in management
reports in two forms: refative (in percentage terms) and absolute (in Roubles). Relative VaR shows the
maximum possible loss as per RR 1 of investments, and absolute VaR -~ losses on the current open position
during the period of evaluation.

VaR is calculated by three methods (deita-normai, parametrical and historical) and, subsequently, the most
adequate evaluation is chosen on the basis of analysing the changes in a financial instrument (group of
instruments).
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The methods used by the Bank are back-tested on a monthly basis. VaR calculations are made together with
stress-testing of the results with the assumption of normal distribution on the basis of a simulation model
(Monte-Carlo method).

Altrough VaR is a valuable tool for measuring market risk exposures, it has a number of timitations, especially
in texss liguid markets:

= The use of historic data as a basis for determining future evenis may not encompass all possible
scenarios, particularly those which are of an extreme nature;

= A one day holding period assumes that all positions can be liquidated or hedged within that period.
This is considered to be a realistic assumption in aimost all cases but may not be the case in situation
in which there is a severe market iliquidity for a prolonged period;

» The use of 95% confidence level does not take into account losses that may occur beyond this level,
There is a 5% probability that the loss could exceed the VaR:

= VaR is calculated only on the end-of-day basis and does not necessarily reflect exposures that may
arise on positions during the trading day.

Currency risk,

In the table below VAR shows the absolute amount of losses for both long and short positions.

In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2006
hort)/ fong position {776 833) (519 957)

At the end of the year (s
VAR 2012 902
{short)/ long position {1536 002) {1 027 576)

Average

VAR 3336 3443
.. hort)/ fong position 148 671 (855 011)

Minimum s
VAR 161 504
. {short)/ long position (3 151 355} (1 915 597
Maximum VAR 9 789 6 667

The Bank's currency risk as at the reporting date does not reflect typical risks during the year due to a
decrease in the open currency position. Currency risk has slightly increased as compared to 2008, but this
increase has not affected the Bank’s exposure to currency risk, as open currency positions increased together
with other assefs and capital of the Bank. The above table shows possible changes in financial results and
equity during one day as a result of possible fluctuations in exchange rates, assessed on the basis of VAR,

Equity risk taken by the Group is assessed as insignificant due to limited volumes of transactions. The table
below shows equity risk analysis at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2008. In evaluating the shares, the
Bank does not consider instruments acquired in initial public offering due to the absence of historical quotes
required for evaluation. As at 31 December 2007 the Group did not have investments in such instruments
{2006: RR 53 660 thousands).

In the table below VAR shows the absolute amount of losses for both fong and short positions. The
information is provided only for days with open position.

in thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2008
At the end of the year ﬁ‘;ﬁ}’f long position M ; g:? 3:11 35{6)
Average S/s/:};rf)f long position 4? i?i 18 “ﬁg
Minimum S/s:gﬂ}f leng position 2 9; g 4 rg;?
Maximum S,:;r%)f long position 192 3(632 351} 2; 519

At 31 December 2007 the major part of the position is hedged by the derivative financial instrument on the
underlying asset. The table includes information on absolute risk exposure without hedging effect. Refer to
Note 32.
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Geographical risk concentration. The geographical concentration of the Group's assets and labilities at

31 December 2007 is set out below:

Russia QECD* Other Total

In thousands of Russian Roubles countries
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 31711183 2279030 - 33 990 183
Mandatory cash balances with the Central Bank of the

Rrussian Federation 2 441 967 - - 2 441 967
Trading securities 12 056 058 - - 12 056 055
Repurchase receivable §6 326 - - g8 326
Derivative financial instruments 10 276 796 - 276 808
Qecurities available for sale 1166 720 - - 1156 720
Securities held to maturity 5495 475 - - 5 495 475
Hue from other banks 1282 B68 - 345 107 1627 975
Loans and advances to customers 291583 137 - - 291 583 137
Deferred income tax asset 5815 - - 5815
Intangible assets 347 353 - - 347 353
Premises and equipment 6 624 308 - - 6 924 308
Current income tax prepayment 51 518 - - 51 518
Other assets 404 563 - - 404 563
Total assets 353 559 268 2 555 826 345107 356 460 201
Liabilities
Derivative financial instrumenis 14 451 3 545 508 3 550 059
Due to other banks 7 330 943 53 897 119 74 767 61 302 829
Customer accounis 93 877 286 2079728 - 05 957 714
Promissory notes issued 32 361 1564 - - 32 361 154
Other borrowed funds 30 294 247 64 994 398 - g5 288 645
Syndicated loans - 15 572 209 - 15 572 209
Current income tax liability - - - -
Deferred tax liability 692 694 - 692 694
Other liabilites 580 172 751 - 580 923
Subordinated debts - 17 320 463 - 17 320 463
Total liabilities 165 151 647 157 410 176 74 767 322 636 590
Net balance sheet position 188 407 621 (154 854 350} 270 340 33 823 811
Credit related commitments 2196 408 - - 2 196 408

*QECD - Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development.

Assets, liabifities and credit related commitments have been classifi
counterparty is located.Cash and premises and equipment have been ¢
which they are physically held.

ed according to the country in which the
lassified according to the country in
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The geographical concentration of the Group's assets and liabilities at 31 December 2006 is set cut below:

Russia QECD* Other Total

Inn thousands of Russian Roubles countries
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 13 556 688 59 067 - 13 615 695
Mandatory cash balances with the Central Bank of the

Russian Federation 1717 423 - - 1717 423
Trading securities 6733224 - - 6733224
Repurchase receivable 152 573 - - 152 573
Derivative financial instruments 227 170 177 - 170 404
Securities available for sale - “ - -
Securities held to maturity - - - -
Due from cther banks 2 864 625 - - 2 8684 825
Loans and advances {0 customears 155 865 243 - - 165 865 243
Deferred income tax asset 184 758 - - 184 758
Intangible assets 170 097 - - 170 097
Premises and equipment 2419370 - - 2419 370
Current income tax prepayment 303 052 - - 303 052
Other assels 382 249 1894 20 384 163
Total assets 184 349 529 231078 20 184 580 627
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 2 B66 638 388 641 254
Due to other banks 2 303 808 30 385735 2 667 843 35 357 186
Customer accounts 34 402 830 59 061 - 34 462 791
Promissory notes issued 38 235757 - - 38 235757
Other borrowed funds 10 017 840 27 682 740 - 37 700 589
Syndicated icans - 26158630 - 2615830
Current income tax lability 3180 - - 3180
Deferred tax liability -
Cther liabilities 287 386 - - 297 386
Subardinated debts - 13 337 (88 - 13 337 088
Total liabilities 85 263 486 74 719 542 2 667 843 162 850 871
Net balance sheet position 99 086 043 (74 4388 464) (2 667 823) 21 929 756
Credit related commitments 1441 169 - - 1441169

*OECD ~ Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development.

Liquidity risk. Liquidity risk is defined as the risk of the Group's inability to meet its obligations on a timely
and full basis. The Group is exposed 1o daily calis on its available cash rescurces from customer accounts,
demand deposits, maturing interbank loans {deposits), term deposits and issued securities, loan draw downs,
guarantees and from margin and other calls on cash settled derivative instruments. The Group does not
maintain cash resocurces to meet all of these needs as experience shows that a minimum level of
reinvestment of maturing funds can be predicted with a high level of certainty.
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The Group manages liquidity risk on the basis of the following principles:

= segregation of duties between the Group's management bodies, its collegial working hodies,
structural units and executives;

= setting limits ensuring an optimal liquidity level and corresponding to the Group's financial position;
= priority of maintaining liquidity over profit maximisation;
= excluding confiicts of interest in organising the kquidity management system,

»  optimal matching of the volumes and maturities of funding sources with the voiumes and maturities of
placed assets.

The responsibility for liquidity management rests with the Bank's Management Board. Resource Committee
and the Treasury within their compenetce. The responsibility for maintaining an optimal level of current {short-
term) liquidity rests with the Treasury of the Bank's Head Office within the set limits of attraction/placement of
funds in the monetary market. In case of necessity to attract/place funds in the volumes exceeding the set
limits, such decisions are made by the Bank's Management Board (Resource Commitiee). Medium-term and
long-term liquidity management is carried cut with consideration of information and proposals provided by the
Risk Evaluation and Management Department at each reporting date.

The Group manages liquidity risk using the following basic methods:

«  evaluating the daily payment position,

« reviewing the actual values and changes in mandatory liquidity ratios;

» forecasting the impact of transactions on mandatory liquidity ratios;

»  setting limits on asset-side transactions by types of investments depending on the sources of funding;

« analysing maturity gaps of the Group on the basis of the most likely claim/repayment dates by main
curencies,

» analysing the Group's exposure to liquidity risk with consideration of stress factors's impact on
various scenarios covering standard and more unfavourable market conditions.

Information on financial assets and liabilities (their structure and gaps within certain time intervals) is used in
management decisions on the Group's liquidity maintenance at an adequate level. Treasury is responsible to
maintain short-term assets portfolio of liquid trading securities, deposits with banks and other interbank
instruments.

The Group maintains a stable financing base consisting mainly of funds that were attracted through placing of
bonds in roubles and currencies, issuing promissory notes, increasing the volume of deposits (including
interbank deposits) and also current resources of the Group as a result of an increase in customer current
ACCOUNS.

The Group develops and promptly reviews a contingency plan for maintaining the necessary liquidity level
with consideration of any changes in the Group's financiat positicn and volume and nature of its transactions.
In case of a liquidity crisis and additional expenses to be incufred in this respect, as well as for coverage of
incurred or potential financial losses all decision-making responsibilities are transferred to the Management
Board.

Compliance with liquidity requirements set by the Bank of Russia is forecasted on a daily basis for the Bank in
general with consideration of the branch network. The Bank sets and daily monitors individual liquidity
sublimits for its regional branches.

For the purpose of additional management of the Bank’s term liguidity in general, the Group uses estimated
liquidity ratios, the level of which is supervised by the Risk Evaluation and Monitoring Department as part of
ongoing monitoring.
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The table below shows distribution of financial liabilities at 31 December 2007 by their remaining contractiual
maturity. The amounts disclosed in the tabie are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of the Group's
balance sheet financial liabilities and off-balance credit related committments. Such undiscounted cash flows
differ from the amount included in the balance sheet, since the balance sheet amount is based on discounted
cash flows. Net settled derivative financial instruments are included at the net amounts expected to be paid.
In respect of gross settied derivative financial instruments, payments are presented by related cash inflows
and outflows separately.

When the amount payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed is determined by reference to the conditions
existing at the reporting date. Foreign currency payments are translated using the spot exchange rate at the
palance sheet date.

Overdue liabilities, including term deposits undrawn by the Bank's customers are categorised as demand and
less than 30 days. The date of maturity of certain assets, for which there is no contractual maturity date is the
expected date of disposal.

The maturity anaiysis of undiscounted financial liabilities at 31 December 2007 is as follows:

Demand Due Due From1to  More than Total
and less  between 31 between 3 years 3years

In thousands of Russian than and 181 days

Roubles 30 days 180 days and 1 year )
Batance sheet financial

liabilities
Gross settied derivative

financial instruments
- inflow (265 422) (20 982 075) (16 431 222) (66 087 099) (34 381 160) (138 146 978)
- outflow 355 034 29 754 067 17 274870 72023912 37 828 144 150 236 927
Net setiled derivative financial

instruments (liabilities) 3939 - - - - 3939
Due to other banks 4 876 422 3798 535 3200041 37816895 23632124 73 333 917
Customer accounts 44 404 677 32653007 18513778 2 182 481 423592 98177535
Promissory notes issued 6131952 15545407 11749626 50 663 55048 33532696
Other borrowed funds - 6327419 12026971 37053412 70 646 754 126 954 556
Syndicated loans 40 849 395 471 7 049 042 9494 211 - 16 979 573
Subordinated debts - 607 855 608 643 0432 507 18579564 22228 459
Off-balance sheet financial

liabilities
Letters of credit 128 112 680 437 494 451 672 522 83828 2 059 350
Other credit related

commitments 24 300 132 - - - - 24 300G 132
Total potential future

payments for financial

obligations 79975695 61780823 565396100 85 639 594 116 867 894 409 660 1086
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The maturity analysis of undiscounted financial liabilities at 31 December 2006 is as follows:

Demand and Due between Due betwsen From 1 to More than Total

in thousands of Russian less than 31 and 181 days and 3 years 3 years

Roubles 30 days 180 days 1 year
Balance sheet financial

Habilities
Gross settled derivative

financial instruments
- inflow (276 551) (25 313 750} (887 281) (13632766) (20 557 618} (B0 707 966)
- outflow 348 584 25 640 088 1 084 401 14 801 469 21295178 63 269 720
Net settled derivative

financial instruments

{liahilities) 2 866 - . - - 2 868
Due to other banks 852 80% 5 484 155 1348 607 29 403 548 4 864 080 41 953 197
Customer accounts 15 134 4556 G 622 047 g 289322 1368 324 - 35 414 148
Promissory notes issued 3429 383 2 895 809 23044 324 11123181 14 200 40 508 877
Other borrowed funds - 1359716 1359718 8115763 40 594 875 51 430070
Syndicated ioans 30 943 30 271 61 850 2 848 101 - 28708865
Subordinated debis - 458 819 458 819 1835278 15 000 828 17 753 744
Off-balance sheet

financial liabilities
Letters of credit 330 697 503 255 329 354 83 859 11 517 1348682
Cther credit related

commitments 13 392 321 - - - “ 13 392 321
Total potential future

payments for financial

obligations 33 245 487 20770 410 36 088 812 56 046 755 61183060 207 334524

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease commitments where the Group is
a lessee is disclosed in Note 31.

Customer accounts are classified in the above analysis based on contractual maturities. However, in
accordance with Russian Civil Code, individuals have a right to withdraw their deposits prior to maturity if they
forfeit their right to accrued interest.

The Group does not use the above undiscounted maturity analysis to manage liquidity. Instead, the Group
monitors expecied maturities.

The tables presented below are based on the management reporis on the Bank's liquidity risk at the stated
dates that were issued in accordance with the Net liquidity Gap Methodology approved by the Bank. These
reports are prepared using the information extracted from the accounting system, which is based on the
Russian Accounting Rutes {RAR).

In evaluating the Group's fiquidity risk, the subsidiary bank's risk was assumed immaterial due to an
insignificant share of its assets and liabiiities in the Group’s balance sheet. Evaluation and monitoring of the
subsidiary bank’s liquidity risk are carried out on the basis of regulatory documents applicable to the Group.
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The table below summarizes analysis of liquidity risk at 31 December 2007:

in Demand Due Due Due Fromito Morethan Qverdue Total
thousands and less between 31 between 81 between 3 years 3 years
of Russian than and and 181 and
Roubles 30 days 90 days 180 days 1 year o -
Total
financiat
assets™ 58 536 653 28 024 080 47 157 959 65 330 821 148 587 510 122 106 326 2 371103 472 123 462
Total
financial
Habilities® 53027 707 35807 731 37388918 61 742 114 131 130 123 126 540 084 - 446 064 677
Net liguidity
gap 5508 946 (7 783 641) 9759041 3 597 707 17 448 387 (4 842758} 2371103 26 058 785
Cumulative

Houidity gap 5508 946 (2274 695) 7484346 11 082 053 28 530 440 23 687682 26 058 785

* Total financial assets and total financial liabilities include gross positions in derivative financial instruments
with gross settiements valued at spot foreign exchange rates as they are accounted in accordance with RAR.

The table below summarize analysis of liquidity risk at 31 December 2006:

in Demand Due Due fue From 1to Morethan Overdue Total
thousands and less between between between 3 years 3 years
of Russian than 31 and 81 and 181 and
Roubles 30 days 90 days 180 days 1 year
Totai
financial
assets” 24 159 412 18976 577 30386362 44084 000 52812620 63277134 993169 234 689 373
Total
financial
Habilities” 18 161 028 12012512 19070523 43104 519 54 129566 70883715 - 217 361 863
Net liquidity
gap 5998 384 6964085 11315839 979 580 {1 316 946) (7 606 581) 993 169 17 327 510
Cumulative

liquidity gap 5998 384 12 962 449 24 278 288 25 257 868 23 940 922 16 334 341 17 327 510

* Total financial assets and total financiai fiabilities include gross positions in derivative financial instruments
with gross settlements valued at spot foreign exchange rates as they are accounted in accordance with RAR.

The matching and/cr controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities is
fundamental to the management of the Group. It is unusual for banks ever to be compietely matched since
business transacted is often of an uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched position potentially
enhances profitabiiity, but can also increase the risk of losses. The maturities of assets and liabiiities and the
ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing fabilities as they mature, are important factors in
assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to changes in interest and exchange rates.

Management believes that in spite of a substantial portion of customers accounts being on demand,
diversification of these deposits by number and type of depositors, and the past experience of the Group
would indicate that these customer accounts provide & long-term and stable source of funding for the Group.
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31 Contingencies and Commitments

Legal proceedings. From time t© time in the normal course of business, claims against the Group are
received by court in justice. Based on its own estimates and both internal and external professional advice the
Group's management is of the opinion that no material losses will be incurred in respect of claims and
accordingly no provision for cover of such losses has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

Tax legislation. Russian tax and customs legisiation is subject to varying interpretations, and changes, which
can occur frequently. Management's interpretation of such legislation as applied to the transactions and
activity of the Group may be chalienged by the relevant authorities.

The Russian tax authorities may be taking a more assertive position in their interpretation of the legislation
and assessments, and it is possible that transactions and activities that have not been challenged in the past
may be challenged. in October 2006, the Supreme Arbitration Court issued guidance to lower courts on
reviewing tax cases providing a systemic roadmap for anti-avoidance claims, and it is possible that this will
significantly increase the level and frequency of scrutiny by tax authorities,

As a result, significant additional taxes, penalties and interest may be assessed. Fiscal pericds remain open
to review by the authorities in respect of taxes for three calendar years preceding the year of review. Under
certain circumstances reviews may cover longer periods.

Russian transfer pricing legisiation introduced 1 January 1999 provides the possibility for tax authorities to
make transfer pricing adjustments and impose additional tax liabilities iIn respect of all controiiable
transactions, provided that the transaction price differs from the market price by more than 20%.

Controflable transactions include transactions with related parties (according to the definition given in the
Russian Tax Code), all international transactions (irrespective whether performed between related or
unrelated parties), transactions where the price per taxpayer differs by more than 20% from the similar
transaction’s price of the same taxpayer within a short period of time, and parter transactions. There is no
formal guidance how fo apply these rules in practice. The past years’ arbitration court practice with this
respect has been contradictory.

The Management of the Group believes that its interpretation of the refevant legislation is reliable and the
Group's tax, currency and customs positions will be confirmed. Therefore, as at 31 December 2007 the
Management has not created any provision for potential tax fiabilities (2006: nif).

Capital expenditure commitments. At 31 December 2007, the Group had contractual capital expenditure
commitments of RR 627 270 thousand (2006: RR 363 453 thousand).

Operating lease commitments. Where the Group is the lessee, the future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellabie PPE operating leases are as follows:

in thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2008
Less than 1 year 770 439 354 309
Due between 1 and b years 1803476 H76 804
Later than 5 years 1436 458 358 518
Total operating lease commitments 4010373 1289 432

Compliance with covenants. The Group is subject to certain covenants related primarily to its borrowings.
Non-compliance with such covenants may result in negative consequences for the Group inchiding an
increase of the borrowing costs and announcement of the default. The Group’s Management believes that the
Group is in compliance with the covenants.
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31 Contingencies and Commitments {Continued)

Credlit related commitments. The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available
to & customer as required. Guarantees and standby fetters of credit, which represent irrevocable assurances
that the Group wili make payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties,
carry the same credit risk as loans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit, which are written
undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer authorising a third party to draw drafts on the Group up to
a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions, are collateralised by the underlying shipments of
goods 0 which they relate or cash deposits and therefore carry less risk than a direct borrowing.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorisations to extend credit in the form of
loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commiments fo extend credit, the Group is
potentially exposed fo loss in an amount equal to the total unused commitments. However, the likely amount
of l0ss is less than the total unused commitments since most commitments to extend credit are contingent
upon customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Group monitors the term to maturity of credit
related commitments because longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk than
shorter-term commitments.

Qutstanding credit related commitments are as follows:

In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2006
Undrawn credit lines 30 C00 72718
Letters of credit 2 059 350 1 348 682
Guarantees issued 107 058 19 769
Total credit related commitments 2196 408 1441 169

The total outstanding contractual amount of undrawn credit lines, fetters of credit, and guarantees does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as these financial instruments may expire or terminate
without being funded.

Undrawn credit lines shown in the table above do not include cancellable commitments of
RR 24 270 132 thousand (2006: RR 13 319 603 thousand), which are dependent on borrowers' compliance
with certain creditworthiness criteria.

Movements in the provision for losses on credit related commitments are as follows:

In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2006
Provision for losses on credit related commitments at 1 January - 801
Provision for losses on credit related commitments during the year - -
Use of provision for losses on credit related commitments during the year - (801)

Provision for losses on credit related commitments at 31 December - -

Credit related commitments are denominated in currencies as follows:

in thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2006
Russian Roubles 129 964 285 153
US Dollars 250 960 212 379
Euros 15677 387 243 637
Other currencies 238 087 -
Total 2 196 408 1441 169
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3 Contingencies and Commitments (Continued)

Fiduciary assets. These assels are not inciuded in the consolidated balance sheet as they are not assets of
the Group. Nominal values disclosed below are normally different from the fair values of respective securities.

The fiduciary assets fall into the following categories:

in thowsands of Russian Roubles 2007 20086
promissory notes issued by the Bank 805 587 626 751
Promissory notes and securities of Russian companies held with the Bank 149 947 331 607
OVGVZ held with Vresheconombank 39274 -
Corporate shares held with the National Depository Centre 550 550
Shares and bonds of companies held with other depesitories 60 -
OVGVZ held in the Bank’s depository - 42 130

Assets pledged and restricted. At 31 December 2007, the Group had municipal bonds pledged under repo
agreements with fair value of RR 08326 thousand (2006: corporate bonds with fair value of
RR 152 573 thousand). Refer to Note 8 In addition, mandatory cash balances with the CBRF of
RR 2 441 967 thousand (2006: RR 1 717 423 thousand) represent mandatory reserve deposits which are not
available to finance the Group's day to day cperations.

32 Derivative Financial Instruments

Foreign exchange derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group are generaily traced in an over-
the-counter market with professional market counterparties on standardised contractual terms and conditions.
Derivative financial instruments have potentially favourable (assets) or unfavourable (tiabilities) conditions as
a result of fiuctuations in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates or other variables relative to their
terms.

The aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate significantly from time to

time. Liquidity risk on derivative financial instruments is managed by the Group's Treasury through
establishing limits on derivatives trading.

Foreign exchange swaps with settlement dates of more than 30 days are structured as lfoans issued in
US Dollars, Euros and Swiss Francs to six OECD banks with maturities from June 2008 to July 2013 and
deposits in Russian Roubles received from the same six banks with similar maturities ("back to back icans”}.
These transactions were aimed at hedging the currency exposure of the Group. These foreign exchange
swaps are vaiued using the model assuming nil fair value at inception of the respective contracts. Currently,
the Russian long-term swap market is not active, and market participants often have substandard credit
ratings. Based on the above considerations, the management believes that standard market yield curves for
respective swap currencies should be adjusted to account for the credit risk and other implied factors in initial

pricing of the Group as & Russian counterparty.
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32 Derivative Financial Instruments {Continued)

The table befow reflects gross positions in derivative financial instruments before netting of any counterparty
positions at 31 December 2007 and covers the contracts with settlement dates after the respective balance

sheet date:
Contracts with Contracts with Total
positive fair value negative fair

In thousands of Russian Roubles value
Foreign exchange swaps with settlement dates of more

than 30 days: fair values at the balance sheet date, of
USD receivable on setilement (+) 15600 874 99 763 440 115 364 314
RR payable on setifement (-} (15 446 384) {103 226 020} (118 672 404)
Eurps receivable on settlement (+) 2731247 - 2731 247
RR payable on setflement (-} (2 808 941) - (2 608 9413
CHF receivable on setilement (+) - 8516 779 8518779
RR payable on settlerment (-) - {8 589 707) (8 599 707)
Fareign exchange forwards with settlement dates from

2 to 30 days: fair values at the balance sheet date, of
USD receivable on settlement {(+) - 355 989 355 989
Euwrcs payable on seiflement {-) - (359 928} {359 928)
Futures on shares: fair value at the balance sheet date,

of
RR receivable on settlement (+) 3480 79708 83 188
Short position in shares (-) (3 470) {90 220) {93 680)
Total net fair value 276 806 {3 559 958} (3 283 153}

The table below reflects gross positions in derivative financial instruments before netting of any counterparty
positions &t 31 December 2006 and covers the confracts with settlement dates after the respective balance

sheet date:
Contracts with Contracts with Total
positive fair value negative fair

in thousands of Russian Roubles value
Foreign exchange swaps with settiement dates of more

than 30 days: fair values at the balance sheet date, of - - -
USD receivable on settlement (+) 39685 147 12177 331 51862 478
RR payable on settiement (-} {39 558 592) (12 815 719) {52 374 311)
Euros receivable on setflement {+) 2670 741 - 2670 741
RR payabile on settlement (-) (2627 119} - (2627 119}
Foreign exchange forward deals with settlement dates

from 2 to 30 days: fair values at the balance sheet date,

of
USD receivable on setilement {+) - 1579 866 1 579 866
RR payable on settlement (- . {1 581 890} (1581 890)
Foreign exchange forward deals with settlement dates up

to 2 days: fair values at the balance sheet date, of
USD receivabie on settlement (+) - 763 602 763 802
RR payable on setttement (-) - {764 444) {764 444)
RR receivable on settlement (+) 131 883 - 131 883
USD payable on seitlement (-) {131 656) - (131 656}
Total net fair value 170 404 (641 254) (470 850)
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33 Fair Value of Financial instruments

Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation. The best evidence of the fair value is the guotation of
the financial instrument in an active market.

The estimated fair values of financial instruments have peen determined by the Group using available market
information, where it exists, and appropriate valuation methodoiogies. However, judgement is necessarily
required to interpret market data to determine the estimated fair value, The Russian Federation continues to
dgisplay some characteristics of an emerging market and economic cenditions continue to limit the volume of
activity in the financial markets. Market quotations may be outdated or reflect distress sale transactions and
therefore not represent fair values of financial instruments. Management has used all available market
inforrmation in estimating the fair vaiue of financial instruments.

Einancial instruments carried at fair value. Trading securities, securities availabie for sale, securities
categorised as “repurchase receivable’, and derivative financial instruments are carried on the consolidated
balance sheet at their fair value.

Refer to Note 32 for the description of the methodology of valuation of foreign exchange swaps. The fair value
of other financial instruments is based on guoted market prices.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost which approximates current fair value.

Loans and receivables carried at amortised cost. The fair value of floating rate instruments is normally
their carrying amount. The estimated fair value of fixed interest rate bearing placements is based on
discounted cash flows using current market interest rates for instruments with similar credit risk and similar
maturity.

Liabilities carried at amortised cost. The fair value of other borrowed funds is based on market prices, if
available. The estimated fair value of fixed interest rate instruments with stated maturity, for which a guoted
market price is not available, was estimated based on expected cash flows discounted at current interest
rates for new instruments with similar credit risk and similar remaining maturity.

Discount rates used depend on currency, maturity of the instrument and credit risk of the counterparty. The
analysis of these rates (in % p.a.) is as foliows:

2007 2006
Due from other banks
Short-term placements with other banks
with original maturity more than 1 month 4% -12% 4%-10%
L.oans and advances to customers
Corporate loans 8%-17% 8%-17%
Loans to individuals 10%-19% 10%-19%
Securities held to maturity 7%-11% -
Due to other banks 3% -9% 3%-8%
Customer accounts
- Term deposits of legal entities 2%-8% 2%-8%
- Term deposits of individuals 3%-11% 3%-11%
Promissory notes issued 45, - 10% 4%-G%
Syndicated loans 5%-6% 5%
Subordinated debts 7% 7%
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33 Eair Value of Financial iInstruments (Continued)

Fair values of financial instruments are as follows:

2007 2006

Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
in thousands of Russian Roubles amount amount
FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT AMORTISED
COST
Cash and cash equivalents
- cash on hand 2991048 2891048 1 249 651 1249 651
- cash balances with the CBRF {other than mandatory
reserve deposits) 19 685 479 19 685 479 11 663 404 11 663 404
- correspondent accounts and placements with other
banks with original maturities of less than one month 11 313 656 11 313 656 702 640 702 640
Due from other banks 1627 975 1627 975 2 864 625 2 864 625
Securities held to maturity 5495 475 5 495 475 - -
Loans and advances to customers
- Loans to corporates 240 708 779 240 644 789 129 082 373 129 082 373
- Lending for food interventions 3189 928 3 189 928 4 480 331 4 490 331
- Reverse repo agreements 2 466 081 2 466 081 797 386 797 385
- Investments in agricultural cooperatives 663 912 663 912 396 935 366 935
- Loans to individuals 44 554 427 44 554 427 21098 218 21098 218
Other financial assets carried at amortised cost 77 866 77 866 91081 91 081
FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE 13 587 907 13 587 907 7 056 201 7 056 201
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 346 362 543 346 298 553 179492 845 179 492 845
FINANGIAL LIABILITIES CARRIED AT AMORTISED
COST
Due to other banks
-Term borrowings from other banks 61150 114 61 150 114 35207 712 35207 712
- Correspondent accounts and overnight placements
of other barnks 66 687 66 687 17 453 17 453
- Repo agreements 86 028 86 028 132 021 132 021
Customer accounis
- State and public crganisations 6 557 056 6 557 056 1 365 140 1 365 140
- Other legal entities 83 051 424 63 051 424 22 628 955 22 628 955
- Individuals 26 345 234 26 349 234 10 468 696 10 468 686
Promissory notes issued 32 361 154 32381 154 38 235 757 38 235 757
Other borrowed funds
- issued Eurcbonds 64 994 398 64 370 774 27 682 740 29 178 036
- Bonds issued on domestic market 30 294 247 30 487 190 10 017 849 10214 720
Syndicated loans 15 572 208 15 572 209 2615630 2615630
Subordinated debis 17 320 463 17 260 332 13 337 088 13 845 781
FINANGIAL LIABILITIES CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE 3 559 959 3 559 959 641 254 641 254
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 321 362 973 320 872 161 162 350 295 164 551 155

Derivative financial instruments. All derivative financial instrument

s are carried at fair value as assets when
the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative. Refer to Note 32.
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34 Reconciliation of Classes of Financial Instruments with Measurement Categories

According to the IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. the Group classifies its
financial assets info the following categories: (a) loans and receivables; (b) availabie for sale financial assets;
(¢) financial assets held to maturity and (d) financial assets at fair value through profit and ioss. Financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss have two subcategories: (i) assels designated as such upon initial
recognition, and (il} financial assets held for trading. The table below provides a recongiliation of classes of
financial assets with these measurement categories as of 31 December 2007.

L.oans and  Available for Held-to- Financial Total
receivables sale assets maturity assets  assets at fair
value through
In thousands of Russian Roubles profit and loss

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
- cash on hand 2991048 2 891 04E
- cash balances with the CBRF

{other than mandatory reserve

deposils) 19 685 479 19 685 47¢
- gorrespondent accounts and

placemants with other banks

with originat maturities of less

than one month 11 313 656 11 313 65€¢
Trading securities
- Debt securities - - - 11 944 178 11 844 17¢
~ Shares - - - 111 877 111877
Repurchase receivable - - - 98 326 88 32¢
Derivative financial instruments - - - 276 806 276 80€
Securities available for sale - 1156 720 - - 1156 72C
Securities held to maturily - - 5495 475 - 5 495 47%
Due from cther banks 1627 975 - - - 1627 97¢
Loans and advances {0

customers
- Loans to corporates 240708 779 - - - 240708 77&
- Lending for focd interventions 3189928 - - - 3189 92¢
- Reverse repo agreements 2 466 091 - - - 2 4686 091
- Investments in agriculfural

cooperatives 663 912 - - - 663 912
- Loans to individuals 44 554 427 - - - 44 b54 427
Other financial asseis 77 866 - - - 77 86¢
TOTAL financial assets 327 279 161 1156 720 5 495 475 12431187 348 362 543
Non-financial assets 10 097 658
TOTAL ASSETS 327 279 161 1156 720 5 495 475 12 431 187 356 460 201

Al of the Group’s financial liabilities except for derivative financial instruments are carried at amortised cost.
Derivative financial instruments are classified as held for trading.
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34  Reconciliation of Classes of Financial Instruments with Measurement Categories {Continued)

The table below provides a reconciliation of classes of financial assets with measurement categories

mentioned above as at 31 December 2006.

Loans and advances Financial assets at fair Total
to customers value through profit

In thousands of Russian Roubles and loss
Financial assets
Gash and cash equivalents
- cash on hand 1 249 651 - 1249 651
- cash bhalances with the CBRF (other

than mandatory reserve deposis) 11 663 404 - 11 663 404
- correspondent accounts and deposits

with maturity jess than cne month in

hanks 702 640 - 702 640
Trading securities
- Debt securities - 6 645 066 6 645 066
- Shares - 88 158 88 158
Repurchase receivable - 152 873 152 873
Derivative financial instruments - 170 404 170 404
Due from other banks 2 8684 625 2 864 825
Loans and advancas to customers
- Loans to corporates 120 082 373 - 129 082 373
- Lending for food interventions 4 490 331 - 4 480 331
- Reverse repo agreements 797 386 - 797 386
- Investments in agricuitural cooperatives 396 935 - 396 935
- Loans to individuals 21098 218 - 21098 218
Other financial assets 91 081 - 91 081
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 172 436 644 7 056 201 179 492 845
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 5087 782
TOTAL ASSETS 172 436 644 7 056 201 184 580 627
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35 Earnings per Share

Rasic earnings per share are calculated by gividing the net profit attributabie to equity holders of the Bank by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, excluding treasury shares.

The Bank has no dilutive potential ordinary shares; therefore, the diluted earnings per share equal the basic
earnings per share.

In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2006

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 4 353671 853 045
Profit for the year (all allocated to ordinary sharehoiders) 4 353 671 853 0;
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 20 946 13 453
Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share 208 63V

36 Related Party Transactions

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, parties are considered to be retated if one party
has the abiiity to control the other party, is under common control, or can exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Bank's only shareholder is the Government of
the Russian Federation represented by the Federal Agency for Managing State Property (Refer to Notel).
The outstanding balances with related parties were as follows:

in thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2006

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash balances with the CBRF (other than mandatory reserve

deposits) 19 685 479 11 663 404
Mandatory cash balances with the Central Bank of the Russian
Federation 2 441 967 1717 423

Nostro accounts and placements with state-controfled banks with
original maturities of less than one months (contraciual interest
rate; 2%-11% p.a. (2006: 1%-9% p.a.)) 3875712 206 882

Trading securities and repurchase receivable {contractual
interest rate: 6%-10% p.a. (2006: 6%-17% p.a.}}

Federal loan bonds (OFZ) 3080494 1069 928
Municipal bonds 1106 034 765 238
Corporate Eurobonds 2 981 346 408 812
Corporate shares 111 877 85 173
Promissory notes of the state-controlied banks - 18 765
Securities available for sale (contractual interest rate: 7%-9%

p-a.)
Municipal Eurobonds 1001 500 -
Corporate Eurcbonds 102 115 -
t.oans and advances to customers
State-controlled companies (contractual interest rate: 7%-1 8% p.a.

{2006 7%-22% p.a.}) g 507 102 8 701 696
Key management and their family members (contractual interest rate:

5% p.a. (2006: 5%-11% p.a.)} 5 B76 5993
Provision for loan impairment at the year end
State-controlled companies (93 414} (92 563)
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36 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2008
Current income tax prepayment 51518 303 052
Due to other banks
Current ferm placements {contractual interest raie: 1%-4% p.a. (2006 1%-11%

p.a.)) 3008 247 714 194
Term deposits and current/settiement accounts
State-controlled companies (contractual interest rate for term deposits: 5%-8%

p.a. for both years) 11 235 285 4 525 505
Key management and their famity members (contractual interest rate for term

depasits: for term deposits 3%-11% p.a. for both years} 184 299 106 173
Current income tax liability 0 3190
Revaluation reserve for available for sale securities (1275} -
Credit related commitments
Guarantees issued 37 096 11 270
t etters of credit - 99 571
Undrawn credit fines (without commitments to extend credit, which are condingent

upon customer's maintaining specific credit standards) 30 000 72718
The income and expense items with related parties were as follows:
In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2006
interest income on cash and cash equivalents
The Central Bank of the Russian Federation 49 877 763
Transactions with state-controlled banks, including placements with original

maturities of less than one months 75 441 26 600
Interest income on trading securities
Government securities 225038 145 403
State-controlled companies 120 176 44 893
Results from operations with trading securities
Govermnment securities (41 880) (19 999
Securities of state-controlled companies {17 703} 14 2145
Interest income on available for sale securities
Government securities 1 00C -
State-controlled companies 407 -
interest income on leans and advances to customers
State-controlled companies 944 859 706 786
Key rmanagement and their family members 329 357
Provision for loan impairment on loans and advances to customers
State-controlled companies 851 (29 519}
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26 Related Party Transactions {(Continued}
In thousands of Russtfan Roubles 2007 2006
Interest expense on due to other banks
The Central Bank of the Russian Federation - (2619
Transactions with other state-controlled banks (65 479) (45 572}
interest expense on subordinated debts
State-controlied companies - (1757)
Interest expense on customer accounts
State-controfled companies {202 430) {108 374}
Key management and their family members {13 556} {6 997)
Agency commission income from the Ministry of Finance of the Russian

Federation for debt collection services 17 797 25 424
income from the Ministry of Agriculture of the Russian Federation for

participation in the nationat project “Bevelopment of the Agro-Industrial

Sector” 8 468 127 118
Expenses refating to participation in the project “Development of the Agro-

industrial Sector” net of taxes and staff costs (7 301) (94 837}
Other income (on guarantees and letters of credit issued) 1538 384
Current income tax expense (904 524) (400 589

Aggregate amounts lent to and repaid by refated parties during 2007 were:

in thousands of Russian Roubles

Amounts lentto
related parties
during the year

Amounts repaid
by related parties
during the year

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash balances with the CBRF (other than mandatory reserve deposiis)

Nostro accounts and placements with state-controiled banks with original
maturities less than one months

Mandatory cash balances with the Central Bank of the Russian Federation

Trading securities and repurchase receivable
Government securities
State-controlled companies

Securities available for sale
Government securities
State-controlled companies

i.oans and advances to customers
State-controtled companies
Key management and their family members

Due to other banks
Current term placements from state-controlied banks
Current placements from CBRF

Customer accounts
State-controlled companies
Key management and their family members

1826662019
243 361 620
1933 427

29 912 003
12 730 441

1001 500
102 115

7099 927
3 868

64 260 934
36112

108 854 662
367 028

1818 639 944
239 692 860
1 208 883

27 560 641
10 146 868

6 284 521
3685

61 965 881
38112

102 144 882
288 902
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36 Related Party Transactions {Continued)

Aggregate amounts lent to and repaid by related parties during 2006 were:

Amounts lentto Amounts repaid by

refated parties
In thausands of Russian Roubles during the year

related parties
during the year

Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash balances with the CBRF {other than mandatory reserve deposils) 1072313 259

Nostro accounts and placements with state-controlled banks with original

maturity less than one months 141 273 233

Mandatory cash batances with the Central Bank of the Russian Federation

Trading securities and repurchase receivable
Government securities
State-controtied companies

Due from other banks
Current term placements with state-controlied banks

Loans and advances to customers
State-controlled companies
Key management and their family members

Due to other banks
Current term placements from state-controfled banks
Current term placements from the CBRF

Customer accounts
State-controlied companies
Key management and their family members

1308 024

11 840 248
4 435 242

100 600

8 760 938
808

62106 751
67 051

58 413 952
182 521

1063 339 161

141 Q75 766
76 318

11 327 185
4168776

100 000

4 768 423
1535

682 328 032
87 051

56 241678
109 613

th 2007, the total remuneration of the members of the Management Board was RR 168 715 thousand (2006:

RR 96 220 thousand).

2007 2006
Expense Accrued Expense Accrued

In thousands of Russian Roubles liability liability
Short-term benefits:
Salary, social security costs and short-term bonuses

included in salary 152 629 9218 85 513 6671
Post-employment benefits:
- Defined contribution retirement scheme 6 300 - 3 520 -
- State pension costs 568 - 516 -
Total 159 497 9218 89 549 6671

Short-term bonuses fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which management

rendered the related services.
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a7 Principat Consolidated Subsidiary and Special Purpose Entity
As at 31 December 2007, the Bank's principal consolidated subsidiaries were as follows:

Name Nature of business Percentage of Percentage of Country of
voting rights, % ownership incorporation

Subsidiary
Closed Joint-Stock Company
Chelyabinsky Commercial Land
Bank Bank 989, 47% 99,47% Russia

Special purpose entity
RSHB Capital S.A. Eurobond issue - - Luxembourg

RSHB Capital S.A. was registered in Luxembourg in 2005. The Company is owned by the foundations
established under the laws of the Netherlands and has been established as a special purpose vehicle for the
sole purpose of issuing Eurobonds and lending the issue proceeds to the Bank (refer to the Note 18 and 21).

38 Management of Capital

The Group's objectives when managing capital are (i) to comply with the capital requirements set by the
Central Bank of the Russian Federation, (i) to ensure the Group's abiiity to continue as a going concern and
(i} to maintain a sufficient capital base to achieve a capital adequacy ratio of at least 8% in accordance with
the requirements of the Basel Accord, as defined in the International Convergence of Capital Measurement
and Capital Standards (updated April 1998) and Amendment fo the Capital Accord to incorporate market risks
(updated November 2005), commoniy known as Basel |. Compliance with the capital adequacy ratio set by
the Central Bank of the Russian Federation is monitored by the Group's management on a monthly basis.

Under the current capital requirements set by the Central Bank of Russia banks have to maintain a ratio of
capital and assets weighted to risk (“statutory capital ratio”) above a prescribed minimum level. Regulatory
capital is based on the Group's report prepared under Russian accounting standards and comprises:

in thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2006
Net assets under Russian legisiation 31179 151 22 160 537
Revaluation reserve 2 309 546 -
Subordinated debis 17 182 340 10 879 589
Other (181 843) {5 000)
Total regulatory capital 50 189 194 328351286

The Group is also subject to minimum capital requirements established by covenants stated in loan
agreements, including capital adequacy levels caiculated in accordance with Basel 1. The composition of the
Group's capital calcutated in accordance with Basle Accord is as follows:
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38 Management of Capital (Continued)

In thousands of Russian Roubles 2007 2008
Share capital 28 477 833 21620832
Retaired earnings 4 435 £87 308 366
Total Her t capital 32 913 420 21826 169
Revaluation reserves 508 493 -
Subotdinated loan 16 456 710 10 964 600
Totat tier Z capital 17 366 203 10 964 600
Total capital 50 279623 32893798

Management of the Group is of the opinion that the Group complied with all the external capital adequacy
reqguirements imposed by the Bank of Russia and loan covenants.

39 Subsequent Events

In February 2008, the Bank issued domestic bonds denominated in Russian Roubles in the amount of
RR 5000 000 thousand, maturing in February 2018 with semi-annual payment of coupon income at
8.75% p.a,

In April 2008, the Group issued Eurobonds denominated in Swiss Francs in the total amount of
CHF 150 000 thousand. These borrowings mature in 4 years and have coupon rate of 6,263% p.a. payable

annually.

tn Aprit 2008 the Group's share capital was increased in amount of RR 2 000 000 thousand.
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